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LOCAL PRESENCE, GLOBALLY

CIE Automotive is an industrial group specialised in managing  HIGH VALUE-ADDED PROCESSES, and 

is supplying components and subassemblies for the automotive market. It is listed on the Madrid and 

Bilbao stock markets, and it has presence in 4 continents and 15 countries.

CIE Automotive focuses its resources on three strategic business areas:

• Automotive components (with 6 basic technologies – Aluminium, Forging, Stamping and Tube 

Welding, Machining, Plastic and Casting, present in 9 countries),

• Biofuels, (with biodiesel plants operating in Spain and Italy, presence in Brazil and Guatemala, and 

its own sales network) and

• Dominion, Technological solutions and services (with plants in Spain, Mexico, Brazil, Argentina 

and Chile)

.. AND THE SUBSIDIARY

THE PARENT ..
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Dear Shareholders,

From a standing start a little over 10 years ago, your company has established 
leadership and in  its new avatar  now commands a market cap of $1 bn. It has been my 
privilege to lead a fine team and to welcome a new member to the family this year. 

You will recall, Mahindra CIE had started it’s journey three years ago when we had laid 
out a two phased strategy. The first phase focused on financial consolidation which I am 
happy to report, has progressed well.

This year your company has now entered the second phase of it’s strategy and intends 
to take advantage of earnings accretive inorganic  opportunities as the primary driver for 
growth. 

And it is this strategy that has seen us acquiring Bill Forge, a market-leading precision forging company with the 
same values and a complementary set of customers and technologies. Anil Haridas and his team  are based in 
Bangalore, India and have  6 manufacturing facilities in India across Bangalore, Coimbatore and Haridwar and a 
recently commissioned plant in Celaya, Mexico.

This phase of growth necessitates a much tighter integration with the parent group. And as part of this integration 
process, we are pleased to welcome Ander Arenaza, a seasoned CIE hand as our new CEO. He and I will work 
together with the global team in an endeavor to deliver on an ambitious strategic plan.  

The European operations have seen some pain and I am happy to 
report that it is behind us. The Indian operations have 
concentrated on maintaining profitability and have resulted in 
maintaining their performance level despite challenging market 
conditions.

We intend to build on the base we have set for ourselves and 
embark on our growth journey with a view of maximizing every 
reasonable opportunity that comes our way. At the same time we 
are building our capabilities by fine tuning our processes to 
improve overall ability to deliver on our promises.

In implementing the strategic plan we  are fortunate to have strong personal support of both Chairmen at M&M and 
CIE  and are grateful for  the trust that has been reposed in us by shareholders, customers and our employees. 

Given that support and combined commitment to the highest standards of   governance and performance, we expect 
to  be able to deliver to your expectations.

Yours Sincerely, Atentamente,

Hemant Luthra
Chairman – Mahindra CIE
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ADDITION TO THE FAMILY.. BILL FORGE

ACE - Machining

Hot Forge Billet

CV Rack rolling Gear Blank machiningForging tool milling

Hot Forging - Die Heating Hot Forging - Stage 3Heat Treatment - Normalising Operation

QA measurement Warm Forging Line - MX1
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Forgings Press
At Forging Pune

Machining Line
At Forgings Pune

12000t Press
At Mahindra Forging Europe

Crankshaft Facility
At Cie Forging Galfor, Spain

Truck Axle Forging
At Mahindra Foring Europe

Production Facility
At Cie Forging Legazpi,

Spain

Automated Gear Production
At Metalcastello, Italy

New Gears Plant
At Pune

New Stampings Plant
At Zaheerabad

Casting Line
At Castings, Pune

Soft Ferrite Magnetic Cores
Production Facility At Pune

2000 T
Moulding Press

At Composites, Pune

OUR FACILITIES
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Dear Shareholders

Your Directors present their Report together with the audited 

ended 31st

A. FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 
(STANDALONE)

(` in Million)

PARTICULARS FY ended 31st 
December, 

2016*
(12 months 

period)

FY ended 31st 
December, 

2015*
(9 months 

period)

Less : Depreciation

cost

-

- -

- -

st

st st

Financials

`
`

 

` `

`
`

Dividend

Transfer to Reserves

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

India

Acquisition of Bill Forge Private Limited (“BFPL”)
th 

`
th

th

Germany and UK

Spain and Lithuania

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Italy

Gears India

Investor Relations (IR)

B. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsidiary Companies 

`
ended 31st `

st st

`  
`

`
31st `

st st

` `

 
` st

`
st st

`
`

`  
1st st

st

to 31st `

`
st ` 

st

to 31st

`  
`

was ` st

th

th 

as on 31st
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th

th

C. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

st

th 

D. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

E. CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES

Annexure I

F. AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors and Auditor’s report

th

rd
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ended 31st

Secretarial Auditor

st

 
31st Annexure II

Cost Auditors

st 

st

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

G. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, 
INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES

H. PUBLIC DEPOSITS AND LOANS/ADVANCES

I TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION 
AND PROTECTION FUND

`

st

`

th

`
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J. EMPLOYEES
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

th

th

th

th

th 

Employees’ Stock Option Scheme

st

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

Annexure III

`
st

`
 Annexure IV

Industrial Relations

K. BOARD AND COMMITTEES

Directors

th

th

th

th

13th

th
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the 18th

th

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Year ended 31st

st

st

Meetings of Board of Directors

st th  
nd nd th th

th th th

th

Meeting of Independent Directors

Performance Evaluation of the Board

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors
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Policy on Appointment and Remuneration

Annexure V & VI

Committees of the Board

L. GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance

Vigil Mechanism

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013

Business Responsibility Report

Risk Management Framework
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M. SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

Sustainability

Awareness on sustainability

Safety, Health and Environment Performance

Safety and Health

Environmental Initiatives

1) Water:

2) Energy:

3) Waste Management: 

4) Green Supply Chain Management:

5) EOHS Legal compliances: 

6) GRI reporting on Sustainability: 
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

`
`

` 

 
`
`

`

st

`

`

Annexure VII
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Annexure VIII
N. SECRETARIAL
Issue of Shares and change in Promoters shareholding

st

`

 `

th

st

st

`
 

`
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th

`
`

` 

Extract of Annual Return

st

Annexure IX

Other Policies under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Dividend Distribution Policy

st

Annexure X

O. GENERAL

Acknowledgement

Hemant Luthra

rd
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Annexure I
Form No. AOC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis—
st

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis—
st

Sr. 
No.

Name(s) of the 
related party& 

Nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contracts/

arrangements/
transactions

Value of 
contracts/

arrangements/
transactions 
(in ` Million)

Duration of 
contracts/

arrangements/
transactions

Salient terms 
of contracts/

arrangements/
transactions

Date of approval by the board, 
if any

Amount 
paid as 
advance 

(in ` 
Million)

1

Associate

Rent paid
transactions 

were in the 

th

 
`

st

Total 8,216.4

Hemant Luthra
rd
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Annexure II
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
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` `

` `

  

 Sachin Bhagwat
th
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Annexure III
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name of Director Designation The ratio of the remuneration 
of each director to the median 
remuneration of employees

 

Director

Barandiaran *
Director

Director

Director

#  Resigned as a Director (Executive Director) of the Company w.e.f. 12th September, 2016
th September, 2016
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The percentage increase in Name of Director/KMP Designation % increase in 
Remuneration

Note:

th

th

th

th

The percentage increase in 

Note:

31st

st

Note:

Hemant Luthra
rd
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Annexure IV
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(in ` Million)

Sl.
No.

Name of the 
employees

Designation Remuneration received 
[in ` Million] (Excluding 

perquisite value pursuant 
to exercise of ESOPs of 

the Company), if any

Perquisite value 
of the ESOP of 
the Company 

exercised 
during the year, 

if any

Experience 
in years

Age in 
years

Date of 
commencement 

of current 
employment

Last 
employment 

held

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
1

Luthra Director
 39

th

 
13th

3  39

4
th

44

 
rd

 
th

33

8

9

T
 33

its order dated 31st th

Notes:

Hemant Luthra
rd 



25

Annexure V
POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

Purpose

Policy Statement

Non-Executive Including Independent Directors

Executive Directors

Key Managerial Personnel (Excluding Managing Director and Executive Directors) (KMPs)

Annual increments and performance pay shall be given to Key Managerial Personnel’s (except for Executive Directors) in accordance 
with policy of the Company and any Executive Director of the Company is authorized to approve the same.

Senior Management Personnel’s and other Employees

organization:
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1) Basic Pay and/or Additional Basic Pay (Fixed Pay)

2) Allowances

Band

Hemant Luthra
rd 
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Annexure VI
POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING FOR ORDERLY 
SUCCESSION TO THE BOARD AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DEFINITIONS

“Board”

“Company”

“Committee(s)”

“Employee” 

“HR’’

“Key Managerial Personnel”

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee”

“Senior Management”

I. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
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II. SUCCESSION PLANNING

 Purpose

 Board

 Senior Management Personnel

Policy Statement

3E approach :

Experience

Exposure

Education

Hemant Luthra
rd 
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Annexure VII
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

Sr. 
No. Name of the Director Category Designation

1

3

`
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Particulars Amount ( ` In Million)

spent during the 
As under:

spent during the 
`

`

spent during the 

`

Sr. 
No.

CSR Project 
or Activity 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
proposed

Projects or programs 
1) Local areas or other 

2) Specify the State 
and district where 

projects or programs 
was undertaken

Amount 
Outlay 

(budget) 
project / 
program 

wise

Amount spent on the 
project or programs 
Sub-heads: during 
Financial Year 1st 

January 2016 to 31st 
December, 2016 (1) 

Direct expenditure on 
projects or programs 

(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
Spent : Direct 

or through 
implementing 

agency

students in 

Naandi 

*- - Naandi 

- - Naandi 

Direct through 
contractor

Direct through 
contractor

Tar Road  - Direct through 
contractor
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project 
or Activity 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
proposed

Projects or programs 
1) Local areas or other 

2) Specify the State 
and district where 

projects or programs 
was undertaken

Amount 
Outlay 

(budget) 
project / 
program 

wise

Amount spent on the 
project or programs 
Sub-heads: during 
Financial Year 1st 

January 2016 to 31st 
December, 2016 (1) 

Direct expenditure on 
projects or programs 

(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
Spent : Direct 

or through 
implementing 

agency

handicapped 

donation 

at 
Direct

at
Direct

at 
Direct

at 
- Direct through a 

contractor
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project 
or Activity 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
proposed

Projects or programs 
1) Local areas or other 

2) Specify the State 
and district where 

projects or programs 
was undertaken

Amount 
Outlay 

(budget) 
project / 
program 

wise

Amount spent on the 
project or programs 
Sub-heads: during 
Financial Year 1st 

January 2016 to 31st 
December, 2016 (1) 

Direct expenditure on 
projects or programs 

(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
Spent : Direct 

or through 
implementing 

agency

Donation 

at

and 

protection 

Awareness and 

ensuring 

at

 

 

Direct

Total 33.69 3.37 10.98
st

`
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6) Reasons for not spending full amount

` `
` 

` `

`
st `

K. Ramaswami  Daljit Mirchandani Romesh Kaul

 Date: 23rd February, 2017
 Place: Mumbai
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Annexure VIII
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO SEC 134(3) 
(M) OF RULE 8(3) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 IS FORMING PART OF THE BOARD´S REPORT FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

A) Conservation of Energy

 
 
 
 
 
 

 i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

 ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

 iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments

`
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B) Technology absorption

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

` `

Hemant Luthra
rd 
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Annexure IX
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

Registration Date

Yes

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY  

S. 
No.

Name and Description of main 
Products / Services

NIC Code of the Product/Service % to total turnover of the company

1

3 38

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sr. 
No.

Name & address of the Company CIL/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares 
Held *

Applicable 
Section
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Sr. 
No.

Name & address of the Company CIL/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares 
Held *

Applicable 
Section
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Sr. 
No.

Name & address of the Company CIL/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares 
Held *

Applicable 
Section
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

Category 
Code Category of Shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the  
year 1st January, 2016

No. of shares held at the end of the  
year 31st December, 2016

% Change 
during The 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

 (I)  (II)  (III)  (IV)  (V)  (VI)  (VII)  (VIII)  (IX)  (X)

(A) Promoter And Promoter 
Group

(1) Indian

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

- -

- - - - - - - -

- -

 Sub-Total A(1) : 70,055,475 - 70,055,475 21.67 70,055,475 - 70,055,475 18.53 (3.14)

(2) Foreign

- - - - - - - - -

- -

- - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - -

Others - - - - - - - - -

 Sub-Total A(2) : 171,767,537 - 171,767,537 53.12 194,267,537 - 194,267,537 51.38 (1.74)

 Total A=A(1)+A(2) 241,823,012 - 241,823,012 74.79 264,323,012 - 264,323,012 69.91 (4.88)

(B) Public Shareholding

(1) Institutions

- - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - -

- - - - -

 Sub-Total B(1) : 44,914,647 49,012 40,592,448 12.55 44,628,154 47,308 44,675,462 11.82 (0.74)

(2) Non-Institutions

- - - - -
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Category 
Code Category of Shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the  
year 1st January, 2016

No. of shares held at the end of the  
year 31st December, 2016

% Change 
during The 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

 (I)  (II)  (III)  (IV)  (V)  (VI)  (VII)  (VIII)  (IX)  (X)

-

`

`

Others -

- -

- -

- -

188 188

 Non-Repatriation -

 Repatriation - - - - -

Trusts - - - - -

- - - - - - - - -

 Sub-Total B(2) : 38,671,810 2,248,778 40,920,588 12.65 66,949,736 2,140,055 69,089,791 18.27 5.62

 Total B=B(1)+B(2) : 79,216,950 2,296,086 81,513,036 25.21 111,577,890 2,187,363 113,765,253 30.09 4.88

 Total (A+B) : 321,039,962 2,296,086 323,336,048 100 375,900,902 2,187,363 378,088,265 100.00 0.00

- - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) : 325,409,469 2,297,790 323,336,048 100.00 375,900,902 2,187,363 378,088,265 100.00 -

B) Shareholding of Promoters**

SN Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

1 Participaciones - -

- -

Total 237,038,944 73.31 - 259,538,944 68.64 - *(4.66)
st

th
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C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Name of the 
Promoter

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year  

1st January, 2016

Date wise Increase /Decrease in Promoters  
shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 

increase / decrease

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

At the end  
of the year  

31st December, 2016
No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

Increase /
Decrease

Reasons 
for change

No. of 
shares 

increasing/
decreased

Date of change in 
shareholding 

D/M/Y

 No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Shares 

held

Participaciones 19th

st

th

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:

 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

For each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Datewise Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase / decrease

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year
Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Shareholder

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

Reasons for 
change

Date of 
change in 

shareholding 
D/M/Y @

No. of 
shares 

increase/
decrease

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

1 - -

-

Decrease
Decrease

-

3 - -

-

4

-
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For each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Datewise Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase / decrease

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year
Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Shareholder

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

Reasons for 
change

Date of 
change in 

shareholding 
D/M/Y @

No. of 
shares 

increase/
decrease

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

-

-

- -

-

8 Decrease

Decrease

Decrease

-
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For each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Datewise Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase / decrease

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year
Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Shareholder

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

Reasons for 
change

Date of 
change in 

shareholding 
D/M/Y @

No. of 
shares 

increase/
decrease

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

9 Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease

-

Decrease
Decrease
Decrease - -

- - -

11
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease - -

- - -

-

13 - -

-

14 Decrease
-

-

st

st

st

st
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E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director / KMP Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease

Cumulative shareholding 
during the year

 No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

Reasons for change Date of change 
in shareholding 

D/M/Y

No. of shares 
increased/
decreased

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

1

-

-

3 -

4 -

 

th -

- - -

-

8  - - - - -

 F) INDEBTEDNESS -

  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
`

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

 -  -  -

Total (i+ii+iii) 70.0 169.4  - 239.4

* Addition  -

* Reduction  -

Net Change  -

 -  -  -

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,384.5 130.0  - 1,514.5
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XI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

 
`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager

TotalMr. Hemant 
Luthra

Mr. Pedro Jesus 
Echegaray Larrea 

(upto 12/09/16)

Mr. Ander 
Arenaza Álvarez 
(From 13/09/16)

Mr. K. 
Ramaswami

1
 -

 -

3
4

- - - - -
Total (A) 43.64 20.36  - 19.02 83.01

`
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Independent Directors Total 
AmountMr. Daljit 

Mirchandani
Mr. 

Dhananjay 
Mungale

Mr. Manoj 
Maheshwari

Mrs. Neelam 
Deo

Mr. 
Suhail A. 
Nathani

Mr. Juan 
Maria Bilbao 

Ugarriza

Mr. Jose 
Sabino 
Velasco 
Ibanez

1 Independent Directors

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Total (1) 0.76 0.47 0.65 0.40 0.20 0.45 0.50 3.43
Other Non-Executive 
Directors

Name of the Non-Executive Directors Total 
AmountMr. Zhooben 

Dosabhoy 
Bhiwandiwala

Mr. 
Shriprakash 

Shukla

Mr. Antonio 
Maria 

Pradera 
Jauregui

Mr. Jesus 
Maria 

Herrera 
Barandiaran

 -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -
 -  -  -  -  -

Total (2)  -  -  -  -  -
Total (B)=(1+2) 0.76 0.47 0.65 0.40 0.20 0.45 0.50 3.43
Total Managerial Remuneration 
(A+B)

86.44

`

`
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`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration CEO CFO CFO Company 
Secretary

Total

Mr. Romesh 
Kaul

Mr. Sanjay Joglekar 
(Upto September 

30, 2016)

Mr. K Jayaprakash 
(From October 24, 

2016)

Mr. Krishnan 
Shankar

1

-

 -  -  -

3

4

Total 13.61 16.69 1.22 3.45 34.97

XII.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Hemant Luthra
rd
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Annexure X
Dividend Distribution Policy

st

`

The retained earnings of the Company may be used in any of the following ways
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Background

Exhibit 1: Legal Structure of Mahindra CIE

21.63% 

Mahindra Gears & 
Transmission Pvt. Ltd 

Gears India 

Mahindra CIE Automotive Ltd, India 
Forgings India (Original Mahindra CIE) 
Foundry India (formerly M Hinoday) 
Magnetic Products India (formerly M Hinoday) 
Stampings India (formerly MUSCO) 
Composites India (formerly M Composites) 

Mahindra Forgings 
Europe*  

Forgings Germany 

Stokes Forgings 
 Forgings UK 

Metalcastello 
Gears Italy 

CIE Galfor 
Forgings Spain 

CIE Legazpi  
Forgings Spain 

CIE LT Forge 
Forgings Lithuania 

CIE Automotive S.A., Spain 

Mahindra Vehicle 
Manufacturers Limited  

+ Promoter Group 

Public 

51.38% (CIE holds this through PIA2 of Spain)  

18.53% 

100% 100% 100% 53.32% 100% 

100% 

Investor Company 

100% 

Note: MCIE holds stake in Mahindra Forgings Europe and 
Metalcastello via Mauritius companies 

* Includes GSA, Schoeneweiss,Falkenroth & JECO Holdings all in Germany. For 
business purposes, Stokes is considered part of Mahindra Forgings Europe 

46.64% 

Bill Forge Pvt. Ltd 
Forgings India 

100% 

BFPL 
Shareholders 

8.46% 

Exhibit 2: Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited - Subsidiary Companies 

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Subsidiary Proportion of Ownership 
Interest

Remarks

1

 

3
4

8
9

11

 13
14
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Subsidiary Proportion of Ownership 
Interest

Remarks

18
19

 

MCIE Overview

Exhibit 3: MCIE – Lines of business

Geography Product Speciality Focus Areas Key Customers CY 2016 Revenue  
(in ` Million)

Forgings

Tractors

 

passenger cars
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Geography Product Speciality Focus Areas Key Customers CY 2016 Revenue  
(in ` Million)

Stampings

Castings

Tractors and Tier 1

Magnetic Products

Lighting

Composites

and Products

Gears

Acquisition of Bill Forge

th

`
` `

`
`
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Industry Outlook & Structure: Caution Ahead 

Europe

Commercial Vehicles > (6T)
Period 2016 2015 Change

Oct-Dec

Passenger vehicles
Period 2016 2015 Change

Oct-Dec

India

`
note and the `

Passenger vehicles (PV's+UV's)
Period 2016 2015 Change

Oct-Dec



52

Human Resources and Industrial Relations Climate 

India

As on 31st

Europe
st

st

st st

Strategy and Operational Performance

India

Tractors

Period 2016 2015 Change

Oct-Dec

Two Wheelers

Period 2016 2015 Change

Oct-Dec
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Germany and UK

Spain and Lithuania

Italy 

Strategy Roadmap

Financial Performance

st st

st

st st
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MCIE’s abridged P&L Statement for the Financial Year 2016                                        ` 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Year ended Year ended

December-16
(12 months 

period)

December-15
(9 months 

period)

December-16
(12 months 

period)

December-15
(9 months 

period)
Audited Audited Audited Audited

1   

16,886.6 53,259.8
982.3 1,986.0

17,868.9 55,245.8

8,151.0 21,527.4
46.6 (84.2)

2,227.2 11,024.9
710.3 2,325.3

6,000.4 17,466.7
12,901.3 52,853.6

3 733.4 2,985.7

4 216.6 313.6
950.0 3,299.3

71.0 593.5
879.0 2,705.8

8 90.2 - 90.2
9 788.7 2,615.6

273.5 745.1

0.8 180.4
11 514.5 1,690.1

514.5 1,690.1
13

14 514.5 1,690.1
 

` 3,780.9 3,780.9

 
`

1.53 5.01
1.52 4.99
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Information for our Indian and Overseas operations are summarized in the table below: 

Segment wise results for 2016 `

Sr. No. Particulars Year ended
31st December, 2016
(12 months period)

31st December, 2015
(9 months period)

Audited Audited
1 Segment Revenue  

21,253.2
34,336.0

Total 55,589.2 40,315.2
(343.4)

Net Sales / Income from Operations 55,245.8 40,007.2
2

1,140.6
2,068.5

Total 3,209.1 1,510.2
Less: 

(593.5)
- -

2,615.5 1,006.1
3 Capital Employed

20,219.7
12,442.9

Total 32,662.6 20,065.9
Synergies with Parents

Opportunities

Risks and Concerns

newer products
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Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

Looking Ahead

Cautionary Statement 

include raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in Government 

incidental factors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF 

GOVERNANCE

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

th

A. Composition of the Board

Directors as on 31st

th

th

th

th
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as on 31st

 Table 1: Composition of the Board of Directors

Directors Category Directors 

Number

Total number 
of Committee 

memberships of 
public companies 

as on 31st 
December, 2016 @

Total number of 
Chairmanships 
of Committee of 

public companies 
as on 31st 

December, 2016 @

Total number of 
Directorships 

of public 
companies 
as on 31st 

December, 2016*

Total number of 
Directorships 

of Private 
companies as on 

31st December, 
2016*

NON–EXECUTIVE
1

Barandiaran
1

1 1 9

8
1 4
3
4
1  1
1  1

 3
3

EXECUTIVE
1

1  3 3

th

th

B. Board Procedure
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C. Number of Board Meetings, Attendance of the 
Directors at Meetings of the Board and at the last 
Annual General Meeting (AGM).

st

19th nd nd

th th th  
th th th 

th

 Table 2: Number of Meetings and Attendance

Sr. 
No.

Directors No. of Board 
Meetings attended

Attendance  
at the AGM

1 9 Yes

No

3 Yes

4 No

9 Yes

8 Yes

No

8 8 No

9 8 No

4 Yes

11 No

8 Yes

13 th Yes

14  4 No
th 3
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D. Meeting of Independent Directors
th

E. Directors seeking appointment /re-appointment

th

 Table 3: Brief resume of the Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment

Mr. Zhooben Dosabhoy 
Bhiwandiwala

Mr. Antonio Maria  
Pradera Jauregui

Mr. Ander Arenaza Álvarez

Age 48
 

 

started his career in 

anaging Director 
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F. Codes of Conduct

st
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H. Performance evaluation of Board, its Committees and 
Directors

I. Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors

 Other Initiatives to update the Directors on a continuing 
basis:

 

J. Risk Management

III. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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A. Audit Committee:

i. Composition, name of members and chairperson

 As on 31st

 

ii. Terms of reference

iii. Meetings and attendance

st th

nd nd th th 
th th

th

 Table 4: Attendance details of Audit Committee

Members No. of Meetings 
Attended

8

th 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

i. Composition, name of members and chairperson

 As on 31st

ii. Terms of reference
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iii. Meetings and attendance

st nd  
th th th  
th th

 Table 5: Attendance details of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee

Members No. of Meetings 
Attended

1

iv. Performance evaluation of Directors and criteria for 
Independent Directors

C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

st

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

 As on 31st
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nd  
nd th

 Table 6: Attendance details of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

Members No. of Meetings 
attended

3
3

E. Allotment Committee

st

F. Preferential Allotment Committee

th th  
th

 
31st

IV. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

A. Policy on remuneration

 
11th

i. Remuneration to Non-Executive including Independent 
Directors

ii. Remuneration to Executive Directors

iii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel’s 
(Excluding Managing Director and Executive Directors) 
(KMPs)

D enior 

iv. Senior Management Personnel’s and other Employees

P
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B. Remuneration / Compensation paid / payable to Directors

 Table 7: Details of remuneration paid/payable to the Directors including Managing Director and Executive Directors   
for the year ended 31st December, 2016

`

Name of the Director Sitting 
Fees (`)*

Salary and 
Perquisites (`)

 Other 
`)

Bonus / 
Performance 

Pay (`)

Pensions Total 
(`)

Contract 
Period

1st

31st

4th

rd 

-

` `
`

Notes:
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C  Table 8: The Stock Options granted to Directors, the period over which accrued and over which exercisable are as 
under

ESOP-2007* ESOP-2015

Name of the 
Director to whom 
Stock Options have 
been granted 

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
October, 

2007@

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
February, 
2008@@

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
August, 

2008 @@@

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
April, 2011 

@@@ @

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
January, 

2012 @@@ 
@@

No. of options granted 
on 12th December, 

2014 against the 
options held in 

Mahindra Composites 
Limited @@@@@@

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
February, 

2016 $

No. of Ordinary 
(Equity) Shares 
held as on 31st 

December, 2016

-

-

 
`

 
` `

`

`

`

`

st

`
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V. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a. Tables below gives details of General Meetings and Special Resolutions passed.

Table 9: Annual General Meetings (AGM) / Extra-Ordinary General Meetings (EGM) held during the past three years and 
Special Resolutions passed therein.

Year
th

`

`

th

, 

 

th  

13th

, 

 

b. Postal Ballot

th

th th

th

th

Particulars of the resolution Type of 
Resolution

No. of votes 
polled

Votes cast 
in favour

% of  votes  
in favour

Votes cast 
against

%  of votes 
against

`
`
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c. Procedure for Postal Ballot

 

d. Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal 
Ballot

VI. DISCLOSURES

a. Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries

b. Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party 
Transactions

 

Year ended 31st

th

` 
st

st

d. Whistle Blower Policy
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e. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of 
Financial Statements

f. Code for Prevention of Insider-Trading practices

th

 
th

g. Details of non-compliance etc.

h. Compliance

i. Mandatory requirements

ii. Adoption of non-mandatory requirements

i. Ethics/Governance Policies

P

j. Shares held by the Non-Executive Directors

 As on 31st

st 

k. Subsidiary Companies



71

VII.  MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

VIII MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

 
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46

Particulars Regulation Number Compliance Status 
(Yes/No/NA)

D
Yes
Yes

Directors Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

N Yes
Yes

R
Yes

R P Yes

transactions Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

ndependent Directors Yes
ndependent Directors Yes

Yes

P Yes
Yes

Directors and enior Yes
Yes
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IX. SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a) 18th Annual General Meeting
th

b) Financial Year

st st

st st

on 31st

st st

st

c) Book Closure
st

th

d) Dividend Payment

 
31st

e) Listing of Ordinary (Equity) Shares, Debentures on 
Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

BSE Limited (BSE) -

 

National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (NSE) -

 1st

g) Stock codes

Particulars Stock Code

h) Stock Price Data

 Table 10: High and low price of Company’s shares for the period January 2016–December 2016 at BSE & NSE

BSE Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
High (`) Low (`) High (`) Low (`)
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i) STOCK PERFORMANCE
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j) Registrar and Transfer Agents:

k) Share Transfer System

l) Distribution of Shareholding

 Table 11: Distribution of shareholding as on 31st December, 2016

Number of 
shares held

Number of 
shareholders

% of shareholders Total shares % of shareholding

418

Total 56,881  100% 378,088,265 100%

m) Shareholding pattern

 Table 12: Shareholding pattern as on 31st December, 2016

Category of Shareholders Number of Equity Shares held Percentage (%)

Trusts

Total  378,088,265 100

n) Dematerialisation of Shares

 As on 31st

st
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o)

p) Commodity price risks and commodity hedging 
activities

q) Foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

r) Plant Locations

 Forgings Division:

 Stamping Division:

 Composites Division:

 Castings Division: 

 Magnetic Products

 Division:

s) Address for correspondence:

 Karvy Computershare Private Limited. 

 

t) Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ 
unclaimed suspense account

rd
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER REGUALATION 34 (3) READ WITH PARA (D) OF SCHEDULE V OF 
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

st  
31st

K. Ramaswami

rd

CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

st st

For B. K. Khare & Co.

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

rd
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company :
2. Name of the Company :
3. Registered address :
4. Website :
5. E-mail id :
6. Financial Year reported : 1st st

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise) 

Sr. No. Activity : NIC Code 
1 :

:
3 :
4 :

:

8. List three key products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet) 

9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company - 

:

:

10. Markets served by the Company - Local/  State/ 
National/ Inter national 

:

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

` : `
` : `

` : `
: `  

incurred:-
:
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SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ 
Companies?

st

2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in 
the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then 
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors 
etc.) that the Company does business with, participate 
in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then 
indicate the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less 
than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

a) Details of the Director/Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies

 Designation

b) Details of the BR head

 Designation
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2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies 

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Sr. 
No.

Questions

Et
hi

cs
 a

nd
 

Tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

Pr
od

uc
t 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s

R
es

po
ns

iv
en

es
s 

to
 S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s

R
es

pe
ct

 H
um

an
 

R
ig

ht
s

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

Pu
bl

ic
po

lic
y 

ad
vo

ca
cy

In
cl

us
iv

e 
gr

ow
th

 
an

d 
eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

En
ga

ge
 

cu
st

om
er

s 
an

d 
co

ns
um

er
s 

in
 

a 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
m

an
ne

r

1
Y Y Y Y Y Y

N

Note 1
Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y
NA

Y Y

3
Y

Note 3

Y

Note 3

Y

Note 3

Y

Note 3

Y

Note 3

Y

Note 3
NA !

Y

Note 3

Y

Note 3

4

Y

Note 4

N

Note 4

Y

Note 4

Y

Note 4

Y

Note 4

N

Note 4
NA

N

Note 4

Y

Note 4

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

Y
N

Y Y Y
N

NA
N N

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

8
Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

9

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y
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Sr. No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1 ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

3 ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

4 ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

3. Governance related to BR

a. Indicate the frequency with which the Board of 
Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess 
the BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 
3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year.
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b. Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability 
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? 
How frequently it is published?

st

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1 - Businesses should conduct and govern 
themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and 
corruption cover only the company? Yes / No. Does 
it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/Others?

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received 

satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Principle 2 – Businesses should provide goods and services 
that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their life cycle.

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design 
has incorporated social or environmental concerns, 
risks and/or opportunities.

2. For each such product, provide the following details 
in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material 
etc.) per unit of product (optional):

 a) Reduction during sourcing/production/ 
distribution achieved since the previous year 
throughout the value chain?

  

  

 b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, 
water) has been achieved since the previous 
year?

3. Does the company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? 
If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced 
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 
words or so.

4. Has the company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work?

 If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their 
capacity and capability of local and small vendors?
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5. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of 
recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 
5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 
50 words or so.

Principle 3 -Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

:
:
:
:
:
:

7. Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment 

Category No. of 
complaints 

pending at the 
beginning of the 

No. of 
complaints 

No. of 
complaints 

Resolved during 

No. of 
complaints 
pending as 

on end of the 

 

 What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?
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Principle 4 - Businesses should respect the interests of, and 
be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those 
who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders?

 Yes

the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized 
stakeholders.

 Yes

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Principle 5 - Businesses should respect and promote human 
rights

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights 
cover only the company or extend to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been 

was satisfactorily resolved by the management?

Principle 6 - Business should respect, protect, and make 
efforts to restore the environment

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

2. Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to 
address global environmental issues such as climate 
change, global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give 
hyperlink for webpage etc.

 Energy Savings:

 Water Saving:

 Waste Reduction:
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3. Does the company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N

4. Does the company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether 

5. Has the company undertaken any other initiatives 

energy, etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web 
page etc.

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for 

 Yes

7. Number of show cause/ legal notices received from 
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year.

public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible 
manner

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber 
or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones 
that your business deals with:

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above 
associations for the advancement or improvement of 
public good? Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas  
(drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic 
Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy 
security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business 
Principles, Others)

Principle 8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth 
and equitable development

initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to 
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.
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2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through 
in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/
government structures/any other organization?

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your 
initiative?

rd

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects- Amount in ` and 
the details of the projects undertaken.

`

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

Principle 9 - Businesses should engage with and provide 
value to their customers and consumers in a responsible 
manner

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer 

Pending Customer complaints of your plant CY-16

Period
 

Registered in this 
period

Open Open 

2. Does the company display product information on 
the product label, over and above what is mandated 
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A./Remarks (additional 
information)

the company regarding unfair trade practices, 
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive 

about 50 words or so.

4. Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ 
consumer satisfaction trends?



86

To the Members of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

statements of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (“the 
Company”), comprising the standalone balance sheet 
as at 31st December, 2016 and the related standalone 

policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
the selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 

in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 

selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

required by the Act in the manner so required and give 

principles generally accepted in India of the state of 
affairs of the Company, as at 31st December, 2016, and 

st 
December, 2016.

Emphasis of matter

relied on the representation of the management of the 
Company that it does not perceive any diminution other 
than temporary in the value of long term investment of ` 

Mahindra Forgings Global Limited and Mahindra Forgings 
International Limited based on management forecasts of 
future earnings of the businesses of these entities. We 
have relied on these management forecasts.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2016, issued by the Central Government of India in terms 

and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of 

 b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by 

statements have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books;

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



87

account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 

amended);

from the directors as on 31st December, 2016 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 

st December, 
2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
our separate report in Annexure II.

 g. With respect to the other matters to be included in 

(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 

foreseeable losses. Provision has been 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on derivative contracts.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Mumbai
23rd
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ANNEXURE I TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

the year ended 31st December, 2016

assets.

books of account.

` Million as at 31st December, 2016
Title deed held in the name of Nature of property Location Gross block Net block
Amforge Industries Limited Freehold Land Chakan  3.8  3.8

Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Freehold Land Zaheerabad  25.0  25.0
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Freehold Land Kanhe  36.9  36.9
D G P Hinoday Industries Limited Freehold Land Urse
Amforge Industries Limited Building Chakan
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Building Zaheerabad  130.8  119.8
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Building Kanhe
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Building  199.1
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Building  10.5
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Building Pantnagar  62.3
Morris Electronics Limited Building Bhosari
Morris Electronics Limited Building Urse  680.2
Mahindra Composites Limited Building Pune  22.1
Siro Plast Limited Building Mangaon  31.6  18.9
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Leasehold Land  26.1
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Leasehold Land  3.3  0.0
Mahindra Ugine Steel Co. Limited Leasehold Land Pantnagar  13.3
D G P Hinoday Industries Limited Leasehold Land Bhosari
Siro Plast Limited Leasehold Land Mangaon  0.3  0.2

  These properties have vested into the Company pursuant to amalgamations of these entities into the Company. According 
to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, other 
than as indicated herein, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of para 3(iii), (iii)(a) and (iii)(b) of the Order are not applicable 
to the aforesaid companies.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits to 
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accounts and records have been made and maintained.

Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Customs Duty, value added 

unpaid at the balance sheet date for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became due.

 (ii) According to the information and explanations given to us, dues of income-tax, sales tax, service tax, excise duty, customs 

Name of Statute Nature of dues ` Million Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where pending

Excise Duty 8.1 2010-11 to 2012-13 CESTAT Mumbai
Excise Duty 1.1 2012-13 Additional Commissioner 

of Central Excise
Excise Duty 9.9 Various CESTAT Mumbai

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax Act, 1961 2005-06 to 2011-12 CIT(Appeals)- Mumbai
Excise Duty 5.5 CESTAT
Excise Duty 0.5 CESTAT
Excise Duty CESTAT
Service Tax Commissioner Appeals
Service Tax 0.5 Various Years CESTAT
Service Tax F.Y. 2015-16 CESTAT
Service Tax 3.8 F.Y. 2015-16 Commissioner Appeals

Income Tax Act, 1961 Appeals against 
Income Tax Claims

3.1 2011-12 Commissioner of Income 

Excise Duty 0.5 2008-09 Commissioner of Central 
Excise and Customs 

Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty 2009-10 & 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner of 
Customs

Excise Duty 0.2 1999-2000 Superintendent of Central 
Excise

Service Tax 0.2 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner of 
Sales Tax

Sales Tax 5.8 High Court
Sales Tax 90.0 Various Central Sales Tax 

Appellate Authority
Sales Tax 119.5 Various Joint Commissioner of 

Sales Tax-Appeals
Sales Tax 0.1 2011-12 Joint Commissioner of 

Sales Tax-Appeals
Sales Tax 2.6 2012-13 Joint Commissioner of 

Sales Tax-Appeals
Excise Duty High Court

Excise Duty

2012 to 2013

Customs, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

Excise Duty 2.2 Dy Commissoner
Excise Duty 0.1 April 2011 to Mar 2012 Commissoner - Appeals
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Name of Statute Nature of dues ` Million Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where pending

Excise Duty 0.5 April 2015 to Mar 2016 Dy Commissoner
Service Tax 55.1 Various Customs, Excise and 

Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2005-06 to 2011-12 Tribunal
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 0.3 CIT(Appeals)- Mumbai
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 13.8 2005-06 to 2011-12 CIT(Appeals)- Mumbai

8. Based on the records examined by us and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not 

any such case by the management of the Company.

11. Based on the records examined by us and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/

paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

15. Based on the records examined by us and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

not applicable.

16. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under 

For B. K. Khare & Co
Chartered Accountants

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Mumbai
23rd
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

reporting of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (“the Company”) 
as of 31st

ended 31st December, 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 

considering the essential components of internal control stated 

Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 

of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

policies and  procedures that  (1)  pertain  to  the  maintenance 
of  records  that,  in  reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

principles, and that receipts  and  expenditures  of  the  company  

of  management and  directors  of  the  company;  and  (3)  
provide  reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 

st December, 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Mumbai
23rd

ANNEXURE II TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF MAHINDRA CIE AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED
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Note 
No.

As at 31st  
December, 2016

As at 31st 
December, 2015

As at 1st 
April, 2015

I ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property Plant and Equipment 5,071.5 5,236.6
b) Capital Work-in-Progress 61.0 221.2
c) Intangible Assets 8 35.3 50.9 21.0
d) Financial Assets

Investment 9 28,758.6
e) 11 814.6

34,741.0
CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 12 1,417.2 1,513.1
b) Financial Assets

i) Investments 9 306.2 662.8
10 2,430.7

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 104.4 126.6 29.0
iv) Other Bank Balances 13 23.4 130.0 26.9

c) 547.0 639.6 635.5
d) Other Current Assets 11 563.2

5,392.4 5,536.1
TOTAL ASSETS 40,133.1

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 3,780.9 3,229.8
b) Other Equity 15 30,854.9

34,635.8
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities

16 - - 56.8
ii) Other Financial Liabilities - - -

b) Provisions 19 210.1 188.3
c) 20 241.2 162.6
d) 22 350.7 253.9

802.0 850.6
CURRENT LIABILITIES
e) Financial Liabilities

16 1,384.5
ii) Trade Payables 1,814.5 1,992.6 2,088.5
iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 136.0 228.2

f) Provisions 19 69.2 69.5
g) Other Current Liabilities 22 1,291.5

4,695.7 3,611.1
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 40,133.1

Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
For B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director

K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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Note 
No.

Year ended 31st  
December, 2016

9 month period 
ended 31st  

December, 2015

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
I Revenue from operations 23 17,868.9 13,309.0

II Other Income 216.6 59.1

III Total Revenue (I+II) 18,085.5 13,368.1

IV EXPENSES
a) Cost of materials consumed 25 8,151.0
b) 25 46.6
c) 26 2,227.2 1,505.0

d) Finance costs 71.0 32.6

e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 710.3 538.3

f) Other expenses 28 6,000.4
Total Expenses (IV) 17,206.5

V 879.0
VI Exceptional items 29 90.2 -

VII 788.7
VIII Tax Expense

a) Current Tax 21 273.5 98.5

b) Deferred Tax 21 0.8
Total Tax (VIII) 274.3 186.3

IX 514.5 313.1

X 514.5 313.1

XI Other Comprehensive Income
(29.0) (9.0)

10.0 3.1

Other Comprehensive Income (19.0) (5.9)

XII Total comprehensive income for the period 495.4
XIII Earnings per equity share of face value of `10 each (for continuing 

operation)
1) Basic 33 1.53
2) Diluted 33 1.52

Income Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2016 
(` in Million)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
For B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director

K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

A. Equity share capital
As at 1st April, 2015 3,229.8
Changes in equity share capital during the period ended 31st December, 2015 issued under Employees’ 
Stock Options Scheme

3.6

As at  31st December, 2015
Changes in equity share capital during the period ended 31st December, 2016 issued under Employees’ 
Stock Options Scheme

2.6

Issue of Equity Shares to Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. and Bill Forge Privet Limited
As at 31st December, 2016

B.  Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive income
Capital 

Reserve
Securities 

Premium Reserve
General  
Reserve

Other  
Reserve *

Retained 
Earnings

Comprising  
Gratuity

Total

As at 1st April, 2015 6,386.3 6,535.8 -
- - - 313.2 - 313.2

Other Comprehensive income/(loss) - - - (5.9) (5.9)
Total Comprehensive income for the period - - - 313.2 (5.9) 307.3

-
Exercise of Employee Stock options - - - 23.0
Options granted during the period - - 0.2 - - 0.2
Foreign exchange gain /(loss)  on the investment in 
preference capital in subsidiary

- - - - -

As at 31st December, 2015 6,386.3 6,535.8 2,035.6 (5.9)
- - - - -

Other Comprehensive income/(loss) - - - - - (19.0) (19.0)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - - - 514.5 (19.0) 495.5
Exercise of Employee Stock options - 22.8 - (11.6) - - 11.2
Options granted during the period - - - - -
Any other changes - 10,069.6** - (6.0) 3.6 -
As at 31st December, 2016 6,386.3 6,535.8

** ` 
* Movement in other reserves  31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
A Capital Redemption Reserve:

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year - - -
Balance as at the end of the year

B Investment Fluctuation Reserve:
Balance at the beginning of the year 50.6 185.1
Foreign exchange gain /(loss)  on the investment in preference capital in subsidiary (6.0)
Balance as at the end of the year 50.6

C
Balance at the beginning of the year 13.9
Options granted during the year 166.9 0.2
Deferred employee grant expenses
Options forfeited during the year
Options exercised during the year (11.6)
Balance at the end of the year 13.9
Total(A+B+C) 324.5 270.9 243.1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
For B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director

K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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Year ended
31st December, 

2016

9 month  
period ended 31st 
December, 2015

788.7

71.0 32.6
(39.0)

 Impairment loss recognised in trade receivables -
 Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 710.3 538.3
 Impairment of non-current assets 8.5
 Employee Stock Option expenses 59.9 (0.3)

1,599.4

 (Increase )/decrease in trade and other receivable (128.0)
 (Increase)/decrease in inventories 95.9
 (Increase)/decrease in other assets 6.2 (212.0)
 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (178.1) (95.9)
 Increase/(decrease) in provisions (106.8) 11.5
 Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 104.2

(206.6) (8.6)
Cash generated from operations 1,392.8 1063.9
Income taxes paid (170.6) (91.2)

1,222.1

(10,715.5) (2,955.0)
11,072.2

 Other dividends received 39.0
 Payments for property, plant and equipment (375.5)

(7,097.1)
(7,076.9)

Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company 4,525.2 28.2
1,163.9 (2.2)

- (102.8)
Interest paid (71.0) (32.6)

5,618.1
(236.7) 198.5

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 254.4 55.9
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17.7

As at 31st 
December, 2016

As at 31st 
December, 2015

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 127.8 256.6
110.1 2.2
17.7

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
For B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director

K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
1. General information

1.1  Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited and activities

is engaged in the business of production and sale of automotive components to original equipment manufacturers and other 
customers (including leading suppliers of components) in India and overseas.

 The Company has manufacturing facilities in various locations across the country in India, MCIE has an established presence 
in each of these locations and supply automotive components to its customers based there and export products to customers 

hubs in order to facilitate supplies to the customers.

st

rd

1.2  Change in Financial Year

 Until 31st st April  to 31st March each year. 
st January to 31st December of the same calendar year. 

st April, 2015 to 31st December, 
st January, 2016 to 31st December, 2016.

2.1 Basis of presentation

31st

31st

`

2.2 Segment information

decision-making executive is responsible for allocating resources to and assessing the performance of the operating segments. 

the reporting period.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016

2.4 Foreign currencies

and losses and also exchange differences arising on translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and monetary 
liabilities outstanding at the end of the year are recognised in the statement of Income Statement.

period.

2.5 Revenue recognition

behalf of the government. The company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the 
primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

 Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by the ICAI, the Company has assumed that recovery of excise duty 

added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

 Sale of goods

 Interest income

 For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
 Dividends

approve the dividend.

2.6 Government grants

it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

 When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and 

the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per accounting policy 

2.7 Taxes

 Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 

comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI 

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016

income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in 
equity.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

 Sales/ Value added tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

 Expenses and assets recognised net of amount of sales / value added tax paid, except

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of asset or as a part of the expense item, as applicable

 The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in  
balance sheet.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

 Freehold land carrying at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of items.

 The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain item 

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.9 Intangible assets

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, 

an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible 

period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible 

another asset.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
 G

derecognized.

2.10 Borrowing costs

2.11 Inventories

basis.

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.12 Provisions

 General

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for 

 Restructuring provisions

features.

the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme 

after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received 

a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

administered fund.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016

periods.

settlements; and

2.14 Share based payments

time period)

 At the end of each reporting period, the Company revised the estimates of the number of options that are expected. It recognises 

2.15 Financial Assets and Financial liabilities

of another entity.

 Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016

 Impairment of Financial assets

 Financial liabilities

 Initial recognition and measurement

attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement

and loss.

 Loans and borrowings

amortisation process.

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 

2.16 Share Capital

the proceeds.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
2.18 Cash dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

2.19 Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of 

 Commercial receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the original 

amounts is recognised in the income statement.

 Financing by means of non- recourse factoring or the sale of trade receivables triggers the de-recognition of the receivable as 

2.20 Trade payables

 Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from 

 Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

2.21 Borrowings

12 months after the end of the reporting period.

 Fees paid on for availing the loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that 

2.22 Environmental disclosures

 Costs incurred by the Company as part of its business activities that are intended to protect the environment and/ or improve its 

property, plant equipment intended to make them more environment- friendly and minimise their impact on the environment.

2.23 Seasonal nature of business and business volume

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
 a. Market risk

trend and expectations.

  Temporary surplus investments are made in debt instruments and risk is managed by adequately diversifying the portfolio.

 b. Liquidity risk

trend in net debt. The calculation of liquidity and net debt at 31st December, 2016 and 31st December, 2015 is calculated 

(` in Million)

31st 
 December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

127.8 256.5

306.2 662.8

-

1,399.5
Liquidity buffer 1,833.5

1,384.5
136.0 228.2

(127.8) (256.5)

(306.2) (662.8)

1,086.5

st December, 2016 of ` 1,399.5 Million in unused loans and credit lines (31st December, 
`

  One of the Company’s strategies is to ensure the optimisation and maximum saturation of the resources assigned to the 

customers.

c. Credit Risk
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016

 The Company continues to consider the credit quality of outstanding balances to be strong. Based on past trends, expected 
credit loss is provided. Details of such provision and analysis of the age of assets that are past due but are not impaired is 

d. Raw material price risk

customers through appropriate adjustments to selling prices.

3.2 Fair Value estimation

 Fair value measurement

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 

advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

and best use.

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

or indirectly observable

unobservable

3.3 Capital risk management

of capital.

 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company can adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
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 Calculation of gearing ratio.
(` in Million)

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015

1,086.5

Equity 34,635.8

(28,758.6)

Total Capital Employed 5,877.2

0.18 -

4. Accounting estimates and judgements

 
application of accounting policies and the amounts presented under assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

 a. Income tax

  Income tax expense for the period ended 31st

adjusted for any permanent and/or temporary differences envisaged in tax legislation governing the corporate income tax 
base calculation. The tax is recognized in the income statement, except insofar as it relates to items recognized directly 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated annual accounts. Deferred income tax is determined 

of investment tax credits the counterpart of the amounts recognized is the deferred income account. The tax credit is 

 

  The present value of the Company pension obligations depends on a series of factors that are determined on an actuarial 
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include 

  The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds 

conditions.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
5. Segment information

company comprises a single business and geographical segment i.e. automotive component manufactured in India.

6. First time adoption Ind AS
st January, 2016 to 31st

st December, 2015, the 

31st st December, 2015, 

st April, 2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal 
 

1st st December, 2015 to Ind AS.

 Exemptions applied

 Ind AS
AS.

st March, 2015. The Company has elected to regard carrying values as at  
31st March, 2015 as deemed cost at the date of transition. The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in 

st April, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS  and as of 31st December, 2015.

intrinsic value method for accounting. As at 1st April, 2015 certain options are outstanding and certain option have vested 
but have not exercised. The Company has decided to apply Ind AS 102 prospectively.

  a. At cost or

Ind AS 109

date of transition to Ind As or previous GAAP carrying amount at that date. The company has elected to measure its investment 

 Effect of Ind AS adoption for Balance Sheet

 (i) Transition elections;

  (i) Transition elections

   Share-based payment transactions

that vested before date of transition to Ind AS. The Company has granted equity settled stock options and has 
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(` in Million)

st April, 2015 certain options are outstanding and certain 
option have vested but have not exercised.

   The Company has decided to apply Ind AS 102 prospectively.

   Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

   a) at cost; or

    ii. previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.

investments at deemed cost i.e. previous GAAP carrying amounts as at the date of transition.

  Equity shares are non-monetary items and non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction (accordingly these are not required to 
be translated at year-end rates).

  (ii) Reconciliation of equity and P&L as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind AS

As at  
1st April, 2015 

(Transition Date)

As at 31st 
December, 2015 
(end of the last 

period Accounts 
was presented 
under previous 

GAAP)
As reported under previous GAAP
Equity Share Capital 3,229.8 3,233.3
Other Equity 19,855.5 20,229.0
Ind AS adjustments increase (decrease)
Provisions for Doubtful debts on expected loss method (9.2) (9.6)
Others (Sales Tax Deferral) (12.1) (13.5)
Actuarial Gain/(loss) - 9.0
Deferred Tax on above 3.1 (5.3)
Total

Particulars 31st  
December, 2015

308.5

Provision for doubtful debts (5.9)
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized under OCI (0.2)
Others (Sales Tax Deferral) (1.0)

Ind AS 301.3
Other Comprehensive( Income)/ Expenses 5.9
Total Comprehensive Income
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

  (iii)
except bank overdrafts repayable on demand, under Ind AS forms an integral part of the cash management process 

7. Property, plant and equipment and Capital Work in Progress

 

Description of Assets Land - 
Freehold

Buildings - 
Freehold

Buildings - 
Leasehold

Plant and 
Equipment 
- Freehold

Equipment
Furniture 

and 
Fixtures

Vehicles Computers 
and EDP 

equipment

Total CWIP

I. Gross Carrying 
Amount

 Balance  as at 1st 
January,  2016

 1,229.1  29.1  15.8  36.5 -

 Additions  13.9  3.6  1.2  11.5  5.0 -
 Disposals  -    (0.1)  (10.5)  (0.0)  -    (3.9)  (1.8)  (30.3) -
 Balance  as at 31st 

December, 2016
 365.3  1,263.5  19.3  35.5  33.9 -

II. Accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment

 Balance as at 1st 
January, 2016

 -    50.1  3.1  3.6  6.2  5.5  6.2  529.6 -

 D e p r e c i a t i o n 
expense for the year 

 -    68.5  592.9  8.1  692.5 -

 Eliminated on 
disposal of assets

 -    -    (0.0)  (8.3)  -    -    (0.9)  (1.8)  (11.1) -

 Balance as at 31st 
December, 2016

 -    118.6  13.8  11.9  12.6  1,211.0 -

III. Net carrying 
amount (I-II)

 365.3  23.6  11.6  32.3  61.0 

Description of Assets Land - 
Freehold

Buildings- 
Freehold

Buildings - 
Leasehold

Plant and 
Equipment 
- Freehold

Equipment
Furniture 

and 
Fixtures

Vehicles Computers 
and EDP 

equipment

Total CWIP

I. Gross Carrying 
Amount

 Balance  as at 1st 
April, 2015

 23.3  12.3  26.9 -

 Additions  161.3  6.1  3.5  2.6  5.0  3.9 -
 Disposals  -    -    (0.3)  (59.8)  (0.1)  (0.1)  (2.8)  (0.0)  (63.0) -
 Balance as at 31st 

December, 2015
 1,229.1  29.1  15.8  36.5 -

II. Accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment

 Balance as at 1st 
April, 2015

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   -

 D e p r e c i a t i o n 
expense for the 
year 

 -    50.1  3.2  3.6  6.3  5.6  6.2  530.0 -

 Eliminated on 
disposal of assets

 -    -    (0.0)  (0.3)  (0.0)  (0.0)  (0.1)  -    (0.5) -

 Balance as at 31st 
December, 2015

 -    50.1  3.1  3.6  6.2  5.5  6.2  529.6 -

III.  Net carrying 
amount (I-II)

 26.0  12.1  28.0  31.0  5,236.9  221.2 
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(` in Million)

8. Intangible assets

 

 2016
Description of Assets Technical 

Knowhow
Computer 
Software

Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount    
 Balance as at 1st January, 2016  59.10 
 Additions           -             2.20 2.20 
 Balance as at 31st December, 2016  21.70         39.60 61.30 
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment    
 Balance as at 1st January, 2016  1.00   8.20 
 Amortization expense for the year    6.90        10.90 
 Balance as at 31st December, 2016    7.90           18.10  26.00 
III.   Net carrying amount (I-II)    13.80             21.50 35.30 

 2015

Description of Assets Technical 
Knowhow

Computer 
Software

Total

Intangible Assets    

I.  Cost    

 Balance as at 1st April, 2015          -              21.00    21.00 

 Additions    38.10 

 Balance as at 31st December, 2015      21.70             37.40    59.10 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment    

 Balance as at 1st April, 2015              -                      -               -   

 Amortisation expense for the year         1.00               8.20 

 Balance as at 31st December, 2015              1.00                 7.20       8.20 

III.    Net carrying amount (I-II)        20.70               30.20   50.90 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

10. Trade and other receivables 
As at 

31st December, 
2016 

Current

As at 
31st December, 

2015 
Current

As at 
31st December, 

2015 
Current

Trade receivables    
(a)     Secured, considered good  -  -
(b)     Unsecured, considered good  2,430.7
(c)      Doubtful  87.7   233.8

 87.7 233.8
 2,430.7

   
 1,044.3

 - Others  1,386.4
 2,430.7

Particulars Total
     233.8

Addition 0.4
Transfer         (145.5) 
Closing Balance 31.12.2015         88.7
Addition         12.5

            (13.6) 
Closing Balance 31.12.2016         87.7

11. Other Assets
As at  

31st December, 2016
As at  

31st December, 2015
As at  

1st April, 2015
Current Non Current Current Current

(a) Capital advances - 38.6  -   -   90.6
(b) Advances other than capital 

advances 
- - - - - - 

 (i) Security Deposits - 309.4 -  -   
 (ii) Advances to related parties - - -   -   -   -   

authorities (other than income 
taxes) 

239.9 - - 203.5 -

 (iv) Other advances 323.3 466.6 222.2 166.9 359.9
563.2 814.6

12. Inventories

As at 31st 
December, 2016

As at 31st 
December, 2015

As at  
1st April, 2015

(a) 251.4 268.8
(b) Work-in-progress 408.9
(c) 323.7 320.2
(d) Stores and spares 304.5
(e) Loose Tools 128.7 165.0
 Total Inventories 1,417.2 1,513.1

  
(i) 30.8             25.6 
(ii) 29.0             13.2
 Total goods-in-transit 59.8 35.9            66.2
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

At 1st April, 2015
Additions
Write-back
At 31st December 2015
Additions 15.8
Write-offs/ transfers (11.0)
At 31st December, 2016 81.0

13. Cash and cash equivalent

 Cash and other cash equivalents as at 31st December, 2016 and 31st

Particulars As at 31st 
December, 2016

As at 31st 
December, 2015

As at  
1st April, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents 101.4 125.8
(a) 2.6 - 6.3
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand 0.4 0.8 1.0
(c) Cash on hand  0.8
Total Cash and cash equivalent 104.4 126.6 29.0
Other Bank Balances    
(a) 0.5
(b)    

(i) On Margin Accounts 22.9 22.1
- - 0.1

Total Other Bank balances  23.4 130.0 26.9
Total cash, cash equivalents and bank balances 127.8 256.6 55.9

14. Equity Share capital 
31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015

No. of 
shares

Amount
shares

Amount
shares

Amount

Equity shares of ̀ 486,942,621 4,869.4 395,000,000 3,950.0 395,000,00 3,950.0 

shares of ` 31/- each
5 -* 29,658,916 29,658,916

Equity shares of ̀ 378,089,210  3,781.0 323,336,993 3,229.8 

Equity shares of ̀ 378,088,265^  3,780.9 3,233.3 3,229.8 

 *Value less than ` 50,000

 ** EGM held on 13th

` ` 31)

the same and the same has been kept in abeyance.
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(` in Million)

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Fresh Issue Bonus ESOP Other 
Changes 

(give details)

Closing 
Balance

Year Ended 31st 
December, 2016

54,491,563  260,654 378,088,265 
Amount in ` Million 3,223.3 544.9  2.7 3,780.9 

Year Ended 31st 
December, 2015

  
Amount in ` Million 3,229.8   3.6

Period Ended 1st 
April, 2015

  
Amount in ` Million 3,229.8   3,229.8

 Details of shares held by the holding Company, the ultimate holding Company, their subsidiaries and associates
 Equity Shares 

with Voting rights
As at 31st December, 2016  
Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2), the holding Company
As at 31st December, 2015  
Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2), the holding Company
As at 1st April, 2015  
Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2), the holding Company

Class of shares / Name of 
shareholder

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
Number of 

shares held
% holding 

in that class 
of shares

shares held
% holding in 
that class of 

shares
shares held

% holding in 
that class of 

shares
      

Parricipaciones Internacionales 
Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2)

194,267,537  51.4 53.1 53.2

Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd.  -  - -   -   20.2
Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturing 
Limited( MVML)

 65,271,407  17.3 20.2 - -

 Note
 PIA2 is a 100% subsidiary of CIE Automotive  SA (“CIE”) a company incorporated in Spain (the ultimate holding company of the 

company)

 M&M transferred its entire shareholding in the Company to its subsidiary MVML on 30th December, 2015.

 Other than as indicated above there are no shareholders each holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company.
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15. Reserves & surplus, other reserves 

 (i) Securities premium reserve
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

April, 2015
Opening balance 4,987.0
Addition on Exercise of options 22.8 -
Other (preferential allotment) 10,069.6 - -
Closing balance 15,079.4

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Opening balance 13.9
Deferred employee expenses (95.7) 0.2 -
Granted to employees 166.9 - -

Forfeiture of options -
Options exercised during the year 11.6 12.8 -
Closing Balance 73.5 13.9

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Opening Balance 2,035.6

514.4 313.2 -
Any other changes 3.6 - (18.1)
Closing balance 2,553.7 2,035.6

Opening Balance (5.9) - -
During the year (19.0) (5.9) -
Closing Balance (24.9) (5.9) -

 (iv) Capital and general reserves
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

April, 2015
6,386.3 6,386.3 6,386.3
6,535.8 6,535.8 6,535.8

164.6

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Opening Balance 92.4 50.6 50.6
Other (restatement of preferential investment) (6.0) -
Closing Balance 86.4 50.6

 Nature and purpose of Reserves

 Securities premium reserve

 

under the MCIE Stock Options Scheme.
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 Number of tranches of share based payments

Particulars Number of Shares Expiry Date Exercise Price Fair value at Grant Date
Equity Settled
1 Granted on 22nd February, 2016 22nd Feb 2019 150 106.16
2 Granted on 12th December, 2016 350,000  12th Dec 2019 150 100.36

 Movement of Share Option

Date

Opening Balance Granted during  
the period

Forfeited 
during 

 the 
period

Exercised 
during 

 the period

Expired during 
 the period

Outstanding 
at the  

end of the 
period

Exercisable 
at the  

end of the 
period

Number 
of Shares

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price

Number 
of Shares

Weighted 
average 

exercise price

Number 
of Shares

Number of 
Shares

Number 
of 

Shares

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

On 26th  26,250  15,250  11,000 0  -    -   
On 26th February, 2008  39,500 83.00  -   0 83.00  6,250 
On 26th February, 2008  5,000  2,000  -   0  3,000  2,500 
On 9th May, 2008 152.00  25,025  -   0 152.00  13,650  13,650 
On 29th July, 2008 102.00  26,330  -   0 102.00  15,265  15,265 
On 26th August, 2008 109.00 0 109.00
On 12th May, 2010  8,000  -    8,000 0  -    -   
On 1st April, 2011 0  228,100  228,100 
On 20th January, 2012  105,509  22  103,369 0  2,118  2,118 
On 31st July, 2009  15,618 52.66  12,138 0 52.66  -    -   
On 18th August, 2006  -    -    -   0  -    -   
On 25th  -   0  -    -   
On 22nd February, 2016 150  -   0 150.00  -   
On 12th December, 2016  350,000 150  -    -   0 150.00  350,000  -   

 Capital reserve

 Capital reserve is reserves generated out of merger under The Integrated Scheme of Amalgamation and the Composite Scheme 
of Amalgamation (Sections 391-395 of the Companies Act, 1956) for the merger of Mahindra Ugine Steel Group Limited 
(MUSCO), Mahindra Hinoday Industries Limited ( MHIL),Mahindra Gears International Limited (MGIL), Mahindra Investment 
India Private Limited (MIIPL), ParticipacionesInternacionales S.L.(PIA3) and Mahindra Composites Limited (MCL). The merger 

st

10th

and is not available for distribution as dividend.

 General reserve

 General reserve is revenue reserve created by virtue of merger of Mahindra Stokes Holding Company Limited (MSHCL), 
Mahindra Forgings Overseas Limited(MFOL) and Mahindra Forgings Mauritius Limited into the Company vide High Court Order 

th

 Capital redemption reserve

shares have since been redeemed and this reserve is available for distribution.

 Other reserves – Investment currency translation reserve

 Exchange differences arising on translation of the investment in the redeemable preference capital in the Company’s subsidiary 

 Other reserves – actuarial gain / loss reserve

 
this reserve account.
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Share based payment

16. Borrowings

Interest 
 Maturity 31st  

December, 2016 
 31st  

December, 2015 
 1st  

April, 2015 
Measured at amortised cost      
A.      
(a) Bonds / debentures      
(b) Term loans      

(1) From Banks - -
(2) From Others Parties   - - - 

  -  -
B.

Loans from related parties   - - 10.8
  -  - 10.8
  - - 56.8

Current Borrowings
A.    
(a) Loans repayable on demand    
 (1) From Banks  1,202.6 2.2 -
 (2) From other Parties    

 1,202.6 2.2 -
B.
(b) Loans from related parties  - -
(d) Other Loans  181.9 110.5 158.7

 181.9 110.5 -
 1,384.5 158.7
1,384.5 215.5

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

- - 56.8
- - -

More than 5 years - - -
- - 56.8

acquired in amalgamation. During the year ended 31st December, 2015 the Company has repaid the loans.
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17. Trade and other payables
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st April, 2015

Current Current Current
Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises 3.1 88.0 16.6 
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 1,777.5
Acceptances 33.9 
Total 1,814.5 1,992.6  2,088.5

 Note:

Dues remaining unpaid 31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

Principle 1.8 89.1
Interest for the current year 0.2
Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Act (0.4) (2.6)
Amount of int. due and payable for period of delay in payment made beyond the 
appointed day during the period

0.5 0.5

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 1.0 0.6
Total 3.1 88.0

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Current   
(a)  Current maturities of long-term debt  - 159.6
(b)  Interest accrued  0.1  0.3 

Unclaimed Dividend 0.9 1.1 2.0
Unclaimed Fractional coupon share
Deposits received
Deferred payment liabilities * 41.6

(c) Other liabilities  0.5
Creditors for capital supplies/services  68.5 95.5 86.2

 24.4 16.8 20.6 
Total  136.0 228.2

 *Sales tax deferral is payable in annual instalments commencing from 2009-10 to 2020-2021.

19. Provisions

 

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
Current Non 

Current
Current

Current
Current

Current
42.1 55.4 35.0 39.3 32.1

Other Provisions
Provision for compensated absences 23.2 143.7 138.0 20.6 122.0
Provision for voluntary retirement scheme 3.9 11.0 9.6 11.0 16.8
Total  69.2 210.1 69.5 188.3



120

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

 Details of movement in other provisions
Other Provisions 

Current
Other Provisions 

Balance at 1st April, 2015 31.3 138.8
Exchange difference
Additional provisions recognized/used 3.2 10.2
Balance at 31st December, 2015
Additional provisions recognized/used
Balance at 31st December, 2016

20. Deferred taxes (` in Millions)

For the Year ended 31st December, 2016
Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
from equity to 

Recognised in 
OCI

Closing 
Balance

Tax effect of items constituting
deferred tax liabilities 

  

Property, Plant and Equipment   
 - - 
Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax assets 

  

     
Equity-Settled Share Based payments   
Provisions (12.0) -  32.6

-  -
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit      
Other Temporary Differences 129.3  30.0 - 10.3 169.6
 - 10.3 202.2

0.9 - (10.3) 

For the 9 months ended 31st December, 2015
Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
from equity to 

Recognised in 
OCI

Closing 
Balance

Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax liabilities

  

Property, Plant and Equipment 22.3 - - 
22.3 - -

Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax assets 

   

- - - -  
Equity-Settled Share Based 
payments

- - - -  

Provisions 81.3 - - 
Deferred income - - - - -
Other Items (unabsorbed depreciation ) 

(32.3)
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit
Other Temporary Differences 125.8 - 3.1 129.3
 250.1 - -

162.6 90.9 - (3.1)
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21. Corporate income tax expense

Year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

In respect of current year  273.4  98.5
In respect of prior years
Unrecognised tax loss used to reduce current tax expense
Others

In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary 
differences  0.9
Unrecognised tax loss used to reduce deferred tax expense

Adjustments due to changes in tax rates

Others   
Total income tax expense on continuing operations  274.3 186.3

 (ii) Income tax recognised on Other comprehensive income

Year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive 

 10.0 3.1

  

Total  10.0 3.1

Year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

788.8
273.0

Effect of income that is exempt from taxation  (9.8) (6.2)

24.2 (53.2)

Effect of tax incentives and concessions (research and development (13.9) (15.0)

Changes in recognised deductible temporary differences 0.9 87.9
 

operations
274.3 186.3
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22. Other liabilities

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
Current Non- 

Current
Current

Current
Current

Current
a.  Advances received from customers  160.1 - 161.3 - 105.5 -

 - Deferred Government grant related 
to assets

-  88.4 - -

- - - - - -
c. Statutory dues      
 - Taxes payable (other than income 

taxes)
 191.5 - - 63.6 -

Contributions
 228.6 - - -

Others 711.3 262.3 262.3 36.8
Total Other Liabilities  1,291.5 350.7 253.9

`

aggregate amount of ` ` 109.9 Million and late fee charge of ` 223.1 Million. Presently 

23. Operating income and other income

Year ended  
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

   
16,886.6 12,538.2

(b) Other operating revenue 982.3 
Total Revenue from Operations 17,868.9 13,309.0

24. Other Income:

Year ended
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a) Interest Income at amortised Cost  27.6
(b) Dividend Income  
 From Investment measured at FVTPL  32.1
(c) Government Grants 11.0 8.3
(d) Miscellaneous income 145.9 25.2
Total Other Income  216.6 59.1

25. Cost of materials

 Cost of material consumed

Year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

` `
Opening stock 268.8 

8,133.6 6,221.9
 8,402.4 6,536.1

251.4 268.8
Cost of materials consumed 8,151.0 
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Year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

  

Finished goods 323.6 320.2

Work-in-progress 408.4

Stock-in-trade   

 732.0

  

Finished goods 320.2 

Work-in-progress 458.4 

Stock-in-trade   

 778.6 810.0

46.6

Year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a)  1,947.2 1,335.3

(b) Contribution to provident and other funds  104.6

(c) Share based payment transactions expenses   

 Equity-settled share-based payments*  59.9  (0.3)

(d)  115.5  86.0

2,227.2  1,505.0 

27. Finance costs
Year ended

31st December, 2016
9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a) Interest expense 34.2 
(b)  36.8

Total 71.0 32.6

28. Other expenses

Year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a) Tools & Stores consumed 976.6 
(b) 1,190.5 900.1
(c) 436.8 
(d) 411.6 318.0
(e) Subcontracting, Hire and Service Charges 505.1 
(f) Excise duty on sale of products 1,767.2 
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(g)
135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.4

(h) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses   
 (i) As Auditors 5.7
 (ii) For Taxation matters 1.9
 (iii) For Other services 0.9 1.2 
(i) Other Expenses 700.7 552.1
 Total 6,000.4

29. Exceptional Items

Scheme declared in June, 2016.

 

  The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund aggregating ` `

 

  (i) Gratuity

vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the Group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India through its Gratuity Trust Fund.

  (ii) Voluntary Retirement Scheme

Deferred payments are fair valued through P&L.

  (iii) Compensated absences

using a discount rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on government 

 (c) Risks

  (i) Asset Volatility

  (ii) Changes in Bond Yields;

an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.
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st December, 2016

Funded Plan Unfunded Plans
Gratuity VRS

2016 2015 2016 2015

Service Cost     
Current Service Cost 16.7 16.2   
 Past service cost and (gains)/losses from settlements -   

4.8  15.3  1.3
20.4 31.5 1.3

    
(12.2)   

30.3 0.1 (0.1)
Actuarial gains and loss arising from experience adjustments (2.4)    
Others (describe) 1    

28.9 (2.5) 0.1 (0.1)
Total 50.4 29.0 1.4 1.3
I. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March     

st March  311.5 292.6 14.8 20.6
 2. Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March  (213.9)    219.1   

 97.6 (14.8) (20.6)
42.1  (35.0) (3.9) (9.6) 
55.4  (39.3) (10.9) (11.0)

II. Change in the obligation during the year ended 31st March     
 291.7 20.6 

 2. Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business Transfer     
     

    
   - Current Service Cost  16.7   
   - Past Service Cost     
  - Interest Expense (Income)  21.0 1.3 

    
    
    

   i. Demographic Assumptions     
   ii. Financial Assumptions  23.4 9.8 0.1 (0.1)
   iii. Experience Adjustments (2.4)    

 (39.2) (5.8) (7.2) (8.2)
 6. Others (Specify)  0.3    

 311.5 292.6 14.8 20.6
III. Change in fair value of assets during the year ended 31st March     
 1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 227.7 180.8   
 2. Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business Transfer     

    
   -  Expected return on plan assets 16.2 12.2   

(7.6) (0.1)   
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Funded Plan Unfunded Plans
Gratuity VRS

2016 2015 2016 2015
    
    

  - Others (specify)     
25.5 31.8   

(39.2) (5.8)   
222.6 219.0 - -

IV. The Major categories of plan assets     
 - List the plan assets by category here     
V. Actuarial assumptions     
 1. Discount rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
 2. Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.75% to 

9.00% 9.00%
NA 

 3. Attrition rate 2% to 
11%

2% to 
11%

NA 

7% to 
8.5% 8.5%

NA 

 5. Mortality Indian Assured  Lives Mortality  
(2006-08) Ultimate

 6. Life expectancy of person retiring at year end 12 to 15 yrs

Variation in Hypothesis Increase in Hypothesis Decrease in Hypothesis
+/- 1.30% -6.06% to -10.83%
+/- 1.00% -5.19% to -10.12%

31. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Contingent liabilities    
   

 Income Tax

preferred an appeal
 74.6

 278.5
 Excise & Customs
 Excise cases against the Company, appealed by the  94.5 88.5 96.8

 Excise case against the Company appealed by the Company 48.8

 Service Tax  66.6
 Sales Tax and VAT  217.9 159.0
 Stamp Duty and others  64.4 81.2
 Government cess on extraction of Minor mineral  10.5 10.5 10.5

 325.0 325.0
 The Company had imported capital goods under the Export 

Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG), of the Government of 
India, at concessional rate of duty on an understanding to 

 30.7

(b) Commitment    
 i. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

exhausted on capital account (net of advances) and 
not provided for tangible assets

 176.0
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`
penal charge of ̀  101.9 Million and late fee charge of ̀  223.1 Million.  Presently the matter is pending before the Hon’ble High Court 

nd

of ̀
` 101.9 Million claimed by the Irrigation Department.  The High Court 

` 28.8 Million deposited earlier by the Company 

Department) shall not adopt any coercive steps for recovery of the aforesaid penal rate charges of ̀  101.9 Million and the late fee of  
` 223.1 Million.

32. Related Party Transactions

  Subsidiary Companies

  1 Stokes Group Limited (SGL)

  2 Mahindra Forgings International Limited (MFIL)

  3 Mahindra Forgings Global Limited (MFGL)

  5 UAB CIE Galfor S.A. (Galfor)

  6 Mahindra Gears and Transmissions Private Limited (MGTPL)

  8 Mahindra Forgings Europe AG (MFE) (subsidiary of MFIL)

  9 Gesenkschmiede Schneider GmbH (subsidiary of MFE)

  10 Jeco Jellinghaus GmbH (subsidiary of MFE)

  11 Falkenroth Unformtechnik GmbH (subsidiary of MFE)

  13 Stokes Forgings Dudley Limited (subsidiary of SGL)

  15 CIE Legazpi S.A. (subsidiary of Galfor)

  16 UAB CIE LT Forge (subsidiary of Galfor)

  18 Crest Geartech Private Limited(subsidiary of MC)
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Sr. 

1
st December, 2015).

2
Company is an Associate).
Subsidiary Companies of MVML

1 Mahindra Intertrade Limited
2 Mahindra Steel Service Centre Limited
3 Mahindra Auto Steel Limited

Mahindra Electric Vehicles Private Limited
5 Mahindra Heavy Engines Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Companies of MVML
1 Mahindra Trucks & Buses Private Limited
2 Mahindra Gujarat Tractor Limited
3 Mahindra Aerospace Structures Private Limited

Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private Limited
5
6 Mahindra Sanyo Special Steels Private Limited

Mahindra Consulting Engineers Limited
8 Defence Land Systems Limited
9
10 Mahindra Contech Limited

 (d)  Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Hemant Luthra Chairman & Executive Director
2 th July, 2016)
3 Managing Director

Mr. Pedro Echergaray (till 12th September, 2016 ) Executive Director
5 Mr. Sanjay Joglekar (till 30th September, 2016)
6 Chief Executive - Stampings & 

Composites 
th October, 2016)

8 Company Secretary & Head-Legal
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

33. Earnings per share

 a) Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

Year ended   
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

` Per Share ` Per Share
Basic earnings per share  
 From continuing operations 1.53 
 From discontinuing operations - -
 Total basic earnings per share 1.53 0.97
Diluted Earnings per share  
 From continuing operations 1.52 
 From discontinuing operations - -
 Total diluted earnings per share 1.52 

  (i) Basic Earnings per share
For the year ended 

31st December, 2016
9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

Company

calculations of basic earnings per share
514.5 313.2

calculation of basic earnings per share from discontinued 
operations

- - 

continuing and discontinued operations
514.5 313.2

Weighted average number of equity shares 337,156,525 323,209,825
1.53 

  (ii) Diluted Earnings per Share

options and Convertible bonds for the respective periods. Since, the effect of the conversion of Preference shares 

For the year ended 
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

per share
 

earnings per share
 514.5 313.2

calculation of diluted earnings per share from discontinued 
operations

 - -

continuing operations
 515.5 313.2

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the 
calculation of Basic EPS

 337,156,525 323,209,285

  
Others if a Effect of Employee Stock options  1,430,039
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the 
calculation of Diluted EPS

 338,586,564

Diluted EPS 1.52
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

34. Other information

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

` `

Period from 1st January, 2016 to  
31st December, 2016

Period from 1st April, 2015 to  
31st December, 2015

In Cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
Construction of assets - - - 3.2 - 3.2
On the purpose other 
than above

- 0.9 - 0.9

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
For B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director

K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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To the Members of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

statements of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (“the 
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as “the 
Group”), comprising the consolidated balance sheet as at 
31st December, 2016, and the consolidated statement of 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 

in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. The 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 

the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
the selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 

the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 

in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made there under. 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 

selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s 

7. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 
their reports referred to paragraph 10 of the Other Matter 

statements.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

required by the Act in the manner so required and give 

principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group, as on 31st December, 2016, 

the year ended 31st December, 2016.

Emphasis of matter

have relied on the representation of management 
of the Company that it does not perceive any 

` 7,443.58 
Million arising on consolidation of Mahindra 

International Limited and its subsidiary companies 
based on management forecasts of future earnings 
of the businesses of these entities. We have relied 
on these management forecasts.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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 b) The emphasis of matter paragraphs by the auditors 

those subsidiaries as at and for the year ended 31st 
December, 2016 -

  i. Stokes Group Limited has net liabilities at 31st 
December, 2016 and has incurred losses for 
the year ended 31st December, 2016

st 
December, 2016; and,

  iii. That these subsidiaries have prepared their 

Automotive S. A. to meet the liabilities of these 
subsidiaries as they become due.

matters.

Other Matters

adjustments) of ` 33,653.9 Million as at 31st 

consolidation adjustments) of ` 37,788.13 Million for 

have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the 

relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely 
on the report of such other auditors.

total assets (before consolidation adjustments) 
of ` 15,968.70 Million as at 31st December, 2016 

adjustments) of ̀  NIL for the year then ended. These 

are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the 
Management, and our opinion on the consolidated 

amounts and disclosures included in respect of 
these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub 
sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act insofar 
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based 

the information and explanations given to us by the 

information after consolidation adjustments, are not 
material to the Group.

 c. Certain subsidiaries referred to in para (b) above, 

applicable in their respective countries. Management 

has concluded that no conversion adjustments are 

Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the balances of 
such subsidiaries located outside India is based on 
the report of the auditors of such subsidiaries.

and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 b. in our opinion proper books of account as required 

so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the reports of the other auditors;

 c. the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated 

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended;

the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st 
December, 2016 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company and the report of 
the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the 

st 
December, 2016, from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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Company and its Indian subsidiaries and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our 
separate report in Annexure I.

 g. With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 

the impact of pending litigations on the 

accounting practice – Refer Note 32 to the 

  ii. The Group did not have any long-term 

foreseeable losses. Provision has been made 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if 
any, on derivative contracts.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

the Holding Company. Based on the auditors’ 

transferred to the said fund in respect of those 
subsidiaries.

B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Mumbai
23rd
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

statements of the Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited as of 31st 

CIE Automotive Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its three subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India (“Indian Subsidiary Companies”), as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding company 
and its Indian Subsidiary Companies are responsible for 

the Company considering the essential components of internal 

Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

business, including adherence to the respective company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and effors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

2013 (“the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 

of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

policies and  procedures that  (1)  pertain  to  the  maintenance 
of  records  that,  in  reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

principles, and that receipts  and  expenditures  of  the  company  

of  management and  directors  of  the  company;  and  (3)  
provide  reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

procedures may deteriorate.

ANNEXURE I TO OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MAHINDRA CIE 
AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiary 
Companies have, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

effectively as at 31st December, 2016, based on the internal control 

considering the essential components of  internal control stated 

Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 

Subsidiary Companies, is based on the corresponding reports of 
the auditors of such companies.

B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Membership No. 044784

Mumbai
23rd
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Note As at 31st  
December, 2016

As at 31st  
December, 2015

As at
1st April, 2015

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 7 17,680.3 15,028.9 14,331.8
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 7 966.5 559.3 1,263.3
(c) 8 26,900.9 17,714.2 16,380.8
(d) Other Intangible Assets 9 154.2 186.2 110.4
(e)

(i)  Investments 10 35.5 7.9 7.9
(ii) Loans 12 2,426.4 826.2 -

(f) Deferred Tax Assets 22 2,403.5 2,020.1 1,834.9
(g) Other Non-current Assets 13 1,324.7 2,064.1 2,096.5

51,892.0 38,406.9 36,025.6
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 14 8,351.7 7,188.7 6,849.6
(b)

(i) Investments 10 353.6 662.8 578.0
(ii) Trade Receivables 11 5,219.2 3,830.8 3,895.6
(iii) Loans 12 12.3 28.5 8.3
(iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 944.4 374.3 710.9
(v) Other Bank Balances 15 36.7 127.2 181.9

(c) Current Tax Assets 268.7 109.3 739.0
(d) Other Current Assets 13 1,569.9 1,295.3 827.7

16,756.5 13,616.9 13,791.0
Total Assets 68,648.5 52,023.8 49,816.6

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 3,780.9 3,233.4 3,229.8
(b) Other Equity 17 28,881.7 16,832.5 15,562.9
(c) Non-Controlling Interest - - 164.0

32,662.6 20,065.9 18,956.7
Non-Current Liabilities
(a)

18 9,324.9 7,518.2 13,726.3
20 15.5 - -

(b) Provisions 21 2,627.8 2,549.4 2,362.5
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities 22 968.0 591.5 335.3
(d) Other Non-current Liabilities 24 668.9 823.8 828.3

13,605.1 11,482.9 17,252.4
Current Liabilities
(a)

18 4,295.8 3,108.3 1,262.6
(ii) Trade Payables 19 15,259.8 13,991.2 10,455.7

20 633.8 512.4 254.6
(b) Provisions 21 193.5 470.2 244.3
(c) Current Tax Liabilities 215.3 138.0 531.2
(d) Other Current Liabilities 24 1782.6 2,254.9 859.1

22,380.8 20,475.0 13,607.5
Total Liabilities and Equity 68,648.5 52,023.8 49,816.6

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

As per Report of even date Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director
K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner
Membership No. 044784

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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Note Year Ended 31st  
December, 2016

9 month period 
ended 31st 

December, 2015
I Revenue from operations 55,245.8 40,007.2

(a) Sale of products and services 53,259.8 38,253.2
(b) Other operating revenues 1,986.0 1,754.0

II Other Income 25 313.6 287.4
III Total Revenue 55,559.4 40,294.6
IV Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed 26 21,527.4 17,775.0
(b)

trade
(84.2) (510.1)

(c) 27 11,024.9 8,013.3
(d) 28 593.5 504.1
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 7,9 2,325.3 1,630.2
(f) Other expenses 29 17,466.7 11,097.3
Total Expenses 52,853.6 38,509.8

2,705.8 1,784.8
V Exceptional Items 90.2 778.7
VI 2,615.6 1,006.1
VII Income Tax Expense

(1) Current tax 23 745.1 327.1
(2) Deferred tax 22 180.4 (88.2)
Total tax expense 925.5 238.9

VIII 1,690.1 767.2
IX

1,690.1 767.2
X Other comprehensive income

A (i)
(98.8) 179.8

(ii) 34.6 (79.8)
B (i)

operations
(119.7) 343.1

(ii) - -
Other comprehensive Income (loss) for the year, net of tax (183.9) 443.1

XI 1,506.2 1,210.3
XII

1,506.2 1,210.3
XIII Earnings per equity share of face value of `

(1) Basic 35 5.01 2.37
(2) Diluted 35 4.99 2.37

Consolidated Income Statement  for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

As per Report of even date Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director
K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner
Membership No. 044784

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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A. Equity share capital
Number of Shares Equity share capital

 Issued and Paid up Capital at 1st April, 2015 322,976,262 3,229.8

- -

 Balance at 1st April, 2015 322,976,262 3,229.8

 Issue of Equity Shares pursuant to Employees’ Stock Options 359,786 3.6

 Balance at 31st December, 2015 323,336,048 3,233.4

 Changes in equity share capital during the year

 Issue of equity shares pursuant to employee share option plan 260,654 2.6

 Issue of equity shares to Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. and 54,491,563 544.9

 Balance as at 31st December, 2016 378,088,265 3,780.9

b.  Other Equity
Reserves and surplus Other reserves Total

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Equity-
settled 

employee 

reserve

General 
Reserve

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve

Actuarial 

(Loss)

Non-
controlling 

interests

As at 1st April, 2015 7,577.6 4,949.8 27.9 6,028.0 164.6 (3,185.0) - - 164.0 15,726.9
- - - - - 767.2 - - - 767.2

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 343.1 100.0  - 443.1

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the period

- - - - - 767.2 343.1 100.0 - 1,210.3

Exercise of employee stock 
options

- 37.0 (14.0) - - - - - - 23.0

Any other changes  - - -  -  - 36.3 - - (164.0) (127.7)
As at 31st December, 2015 7,577.6 4,986.8 13.9 6,028.0 164.6 (2,381.5) 343.1 100.0 - 16,832.5

- - - - - 1,690.1 - - - 1,690.1
Other Comprehensive 
Income 

 -  -  -  -  - - (119.7) (64.2)  - (183.9)

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year

- - - - - 1,690.1 (119.7) (64.2) - 1506.2

Exercise of employee stock 
options

- 22.8 59.7 - - - - - - 82.5

Issue of shares - 10,069.6 - - - - - - - 10,069.6
Any other changes  - -  -  -  - 390.9  -  - - 390.9
As at 31st December, 2016 7,577.6 15,079.2 73.6 6,028.0 164.6 (300.5) 223.4 35.8 - 28,881.7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31st December, 2016 (` in Million)

As per Report of even date Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director
K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner
Membership No. 044784

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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Note 
No.

Year ended 31st  
December, 2016

9 month period 
ended 31st 

December, 2015
I

2,615.6 1,006.1

28 593.5 504.1
Interest and dividend income 25 (107.8) (49.2)

96.7 153.3
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 (63.2) (18.0)
Depreciation and amortisation 7,9 2,325.3 1,630.2
Expenses recognized in respect of ESOP’s 27 59.9 (0.3)
Currency Translation Adjustments (6.3) (25.8)

5,513.7 3,200.4

(Increase) in trade and other receivables (1561.6) (177.4)
(110.3) (339.1)
(209.3) 4,373.1

(1881.2) 3,856.6
Income taxes paid (592.9) (260.7)
Net cash generated by operating activities 3,039.6 6,796.3

II
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash) 31 (6,721.1) -

(10,787.6) (3,098.2)
11,072.2 2,803.4

Interest and dividend received 25 107.8 49.2
Payments for property, plant and equipment 7,9 (2,157.6) (2,068.4)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 178.5 62.3

(8,307.8) (2,251.7)
III

Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Group 4,525.2 28.2
18 1816.1 (4,626.7)

Interest paid (593.5) (337.4)
5,747.8 (4,935.9)

IV Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 479.6 (391.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 501.5 892.8
Effects of exchange rate changes (on cash held in foreign currencies)   

V Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 981.1 501.5
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 944.4 374.3

36.7 127.2
981.1 501.5

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

As per Report of even date Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director
K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner
Membership No. 044784

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
1. General information

 Mahindra CIE Automotive Group and activities

Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) are engaged in the business of production and sale of 
automotive components to original equipment manufacturers and other customers (including leading suppliers of components) 
in India and overseas.

 The Group has manufacturing facilities in India, Germany, Spain, Lithuania, Italy and the United Kingdom. The Group has an 
established presence in each of these locations and supply automotive components to its customers based there and export 

major automotive manufacturing hubs in order to facilitate supplies to the customers.

Spain.

interest of the Group in such subsidiaries is included in the Appendix attached hereto.
st January, 2016 to 31st

rd

 Change in Financial Year

 Until 31st st April to 31st March each 
st January to December 31. Accordingly, MCIE 

st April, 2015 to 31st December, 2015.The current period 
st January, 2016 to 31st December, 2016.

 Changes in the scope of consolidation

 In September, 2016, Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited signed an agreement for the acquisition of all of the share capital of the 
` 

issue of shares.

 Crest Geartech Private Limited, a dormant company of the Group has been consolidated under equity method.

2.1 Basis of presentation

31st

31st

` and all values are rounded to the nearest Million in single digit, except 

2.2 Consolidation principles
st December, 

the investee.

has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
 

holders

control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s 

parent Group, i.e., period ended on 31st December, 2016.

this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in 

 b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of 

2.3 Segment information

 
highest decision-making executive is responsible for allocating resources to and assessing the performance of the operating 
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2.4 Business combinations and goodwill

 
business combinations prospectively from 1st April, 2015. As such, previous GAAP balances relating to business combinations 

 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the 

incurred.

arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in 

date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

 If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair 

 Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent 

equity.

assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-

used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair 
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in OCI and accumulated 

acquiree are assigned to those units.

indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, 
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portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period 
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

2.5 Investment in associates and joint ventures

control over the subsidiaries.

 The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, 
the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted 

relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment 
individually.

or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

 If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture 

venture), the entity discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that 
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the 

that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of 
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the reporting period.

2.7 Foreign currencies

`

using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation the gain 

 Transactions and balances

 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot rates 

average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange 
at the reporting date.

disposal of the net investment.

 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 

 Group companies

 On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into ` at the rate of exchange prevailing at the 

the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are 
recognized in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is 
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st April, 2015 and any fair value 

adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the 
foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

to Ind AS (1st April, 2015), are treated as assets and liabilities of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of the foreign 
operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed in the functional currency of the 
parent and no further translation differences occur.

 Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of transition, viz.,  
1st April, 2015. Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose before 
the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the transition date.

2.8 Revenue recognition

behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the 
primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

account, revenue includes excise duty.

added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

 Sale of goods

the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

 Interest income

is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 

 Dividends

approve the dividend.

2.9 Government grants

it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

 When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and 

the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received.
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2.10 Taxes

 Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 

comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI 

 Deferred tax

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 

joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences 

utilized.

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that 

Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

 The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in 
the balance sheet.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment

depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of items.

 The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of 

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.12 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a 

at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding 

the expenditure is incurred.

an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible 

period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible 

another asset.

derecognized.

 Research and development expenses
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development is deemed probable taking into account its technical and commercial feasibility, management intends to complete 

expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent 

 Licences

using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and licences over their estimated useful lives.

2.13 Borrowing costs

2.14 Leases

st

basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

 Group as a lessee

and the lease term.

lease term.

 Group as a lessor

operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the 

investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

 Ind AS 17 requires that lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis 
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are not on that basis, or

this condition is not met.
2.15 Inventories

basis.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its 

are largely independent of those from other assets or Groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 

valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 
companies or other available fair value indicators.

recognized in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the 
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 

is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that 

reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
st December.
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st December at the CGU level, as 

2.17 Provisions
 General

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for 

 Warranty provisions

 Restructuring provisions

contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an 

after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received 

a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

fund.

 Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net 

periods.

settlements; and

2.19 Share based payments

time period)
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 Non-market performance and service conditions are included in the assumptions about the number of options that are expected 

 At the end of each reporting period, the Group revised the estimates of the number of options that are expected. It recognises 

2.20 Financial Assets and Financial liabilities

of another entity.
 Financial assets
 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement

 Financial liabilities
 Initial recognition and measurement

attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement
 Loans and borrowings

through the EIR amortisation process.
 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 

2.21 Share Capital

the proceeds.
2.22 Cash and cash equivalents

2.23 Cash dividend
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2.24 Trade receivables
 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of 

 Commercial receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the original 

at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced as the provision is used and the loss is recognised 

2.25 Trade payables
 Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from 

 Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

2.26 Borrowings

12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.27 Environmental disclosures

property, plant equipment intended to make them more environment-friendly and minimise their impact on the environment.

2.28 Seasonal nature of business and business volume

3. Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

 a. Market risk
 

for operations in UK. Therefore the foreign currency risk is largely of translation on reporting date. The exchange risk on 
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is mainly managed through natural hedges achieved by denominating 

expectations.

  Temporary surplus investments are made in debt instruments and risk is managed by adequately diversifying the portfolio.
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(` in Million)

 b. Liquidity risk

facilities. In this respect, the MCIE Automotive Group strategy, articulated by its Treasury Department, is to maintain the 

st December, 2016 and 31st December, 

31st December, 
2016

31st December, 
2015

Cash, cash equivalents & bank balances (Note 15) 981.1 501.5

2,426.4 826.2

353.6 662.8

12.3 28.5

1,520.9 628.0

Liquidity buffer 5,294.3 2,647.0

13,620.7 10,626.5

633.9 512.4

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) (981.1) (501.5)

(2,426.4) (826.2)

(353.6) (662.8)

(12.3) (28.5)

10,481.2 9,119.9

st December, 2016 of ` 1520.9 Million in unused loans and credit lines (31st December, 
` 628.0 Million).

  One of the Group’s strategies is to ensure the optimisation and maximum saturation of the resources assigned to the 

 c. Credit Risk

  With respect to customer credit limits, it should be noted that Group policy is to spread its volumes across customers or 
manufacturing platforms.
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(` in Million)

days in the present no credit risk. The Group continues to consider the credit quality of these outstanding balances to be 
strong. Based on past trends, expected credit loss is provided. Details of such provision and analysis of the age of assets 
that are past due but are not impaired is provided in note 11.

 d. Raw material price risk

customers through appropriate adjustments to selling prices.
3.2 Fair Value Estimation
 Fair Value Measurement

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 

advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

and best use.

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

or indirectly observable

unobservable

3.3 Capital Risk Management

of capital.
 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group can adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 

 Calculation of Gearing ratio.

31st December, 
2016

31st December, 
2015

10,481.2 9,119.9
Equity 32,662.6 20,065.9
Total Capital Employed 43,143.8 29,185.8
Gearing Ratio 0.24 0.31
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4. Accounting estimates and judgements

 
application of accounting policies and the amounts presented under assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

 a) Estimated impairment loss on goodwill

st December, 2016.

 b) Estimated fair value of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities associated with a business combination.

operating conditions or other pertinent circumstances that exist at the acquisition date.

  The measurement of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value requires the use of estimates that depend 

assets and liabilities, comparable quoted prices on active markets and other procedures, as disclosed in the relevant 

equipment the Group uses appraisals prepared by independent experts.

 c) Income tax

  Income tax expense for the period ended 31st

base calculation. The tax is recognized in the income statement, except insofar as it relates to items recognized directly 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated annual accounts. Deferred income tax is determined 

of investment tax credits the counterpart of the amounts recognized is the deferred income account. The tax credit is 

 

  The present value of the Group’s pension obligations depends on a series of factors that are determined on an actuarial 
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include 

  The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that 

conditions.
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(` in Million)

5. Segment information

 

Year ended 31st December, 2016
Indian Europe Total 

Segments
Adjustment & 
Eliminations

Consolidated

Revenue 21,253.2 34,336.0 55,589.2 (343.4) 55,245.8
19,242.2 30,812.7 50,054.8 (343.4) 49,711.4

Depreciation and amortization 870.4 1,454.9 2,325.3 - 2,325.3
1,140.6 2,068.5 3,209.1 - 3,209.1

EBIDTA 2,011.0 3,523.4 5,534.4 - 5,534.4
Total assets 29,149.1 39,499.6 68,648.7 - 68,648.7
Total liabilities 8,929.4 27,055.9 35,985.3 - 35,985.3

856.3 1,301.3 2,157.6 - 2,157.6

Nine Month Period ended 31st

India Europe Total 
Segments

Adjustment & 
Eliminations

Consolidated

Revenue 14,440.1 25,875.1 40,315.2 (308.0) 40,007.2
13,200.8 23,974.0 37,174.8 (308.0) 36,866.8

Depreciation and amortization 599.9 1,030.3 1,630.2 - 1,630.2
639.4 870.8 1,510.2 - 1,510.2

EBIDTA 1,239.3 1,901.1 3,140.4 - 3,140.4
Total assets 14,397.6 37,626.8 52,023.7 52,023.7
Total liabilities 5,342.0 26,615.8 31,957.8 31,957.8

411.4 1,714.0 2,125.4 2,125.4

Year ended 
31st December, 

2016

9 month period 
ended 31st 

December, 2015
Operating results (EBIT) 3,209.1 1,510.2

(593.5) (504.1)
Corporate income tax (925.5) (238.9)

1,690.1 767.2

inventories, accounts receivable and cash.

6. First time adoption Ind AS

 st

st December, 2015, the Group 

Rules, 2006 as amended (‘previous GAAP’).
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st 

st December, 2015, 

st April, 2015, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal 
st April, 

st December, 2015 to Ind AS.

 Exemptions applied

 
AS.

 1. The group has not applied Ind AS 103 to Business Combinations for acquisitions of subsidiaries that occurred before 1st 
April, 2015. The Group did not recognise or exclude any previously recognised amounts as a result of Ind AS recognition 
requirements.

st April, 2015.

liabilities of the parent rather than as assets and liabilities of the acquiree. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are 
already expressed in the functional currency of the parent or are non-monetary foreign currency items and no further 
translation differences occur.

st March, 2015. The Group has elected to regard carrying values as at 31st March, 
2015 as deemed cost at the date of transition.

 4. Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero as at 1st April, 2015.

 5. The estimates as at 1st April, 2015 and as at 31st

st April, 
2015, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of 31st December, 2015.

 6. Non-controlling interests

subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control; and

  c) The requirements in paragraphs (B97–B99) for accounting for a loss of control over a subsidiary.

retrospectively.
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 Effect of Ind AS adoption for Balance Sheet

 

 (i) Transition elections;

 (ii) Reconciliation of equity and P&L as previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS;

  (i) Transition elections

   Exemptions from business combinations

Ind AS 110 from that same date.

   The Group has decided not apply Ind AS 103 retrospectively to the past business combinations.

   Share-based payment transactions

st March, 2015]. 
The Group has decided to apply Ind AS 102 prospectively.

   Deemed cost

at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date.

equipment at, or before, the date of transition to Ind AS as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation, if the 

and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

   Cumulative translation differences

   a) to recognize translation differences in other comprehensive income and accumulate these in a separate 
component of equity; and

   b) on disposal of a foreign operation, to reclassify the cumulative translation difference for that foreign operation 

loss on disposal.

existed at the date of transition to Ind AS.

cumulative translation differences that existed at 1st
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

   Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

   a) at cost; or

    ii. Previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.

measure the investments at deemed cost i.e. previous GAAP carrying amounts as at the date of transition.

   Equity shares are non-monetary items and non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction (accordingly these are not 
required to be translated at year-end rates).

  (ii) Reconciliation of equity and P&L as previously reported under Previous GAAP to IND AS

Reconciliation of Equity As at 1st  
April, 2015 (Date 

of Transition)

As at 31st 
December, 2015 

(end of last period 
presented under 
previous GAAP)

Equity as reported under previous GAAP 19,020.3 20,107.3

Deferred income tax (25.3) (26.9)
Others
1. Provision for Doubtful debts on expected loss method 3.8 (5.1)
2. Others (30.0) -
3. (12.1) (9.4)
Equity as reported under IND AS 18,956.7 20,065.9

9 month period ended  
31st December, 2015

Previous GAAP 1,067.9 872.3

Provision for doubtful debts (7.7) (5.1)
Adjustment of actuarial gain (transferred to OCI) (179.8) (100.0)

(187.5) (105.1)
880.4 767.2

Other comprehensive income 522.9 443.1
Total comprehensive income under Ind AS 1,403.3 1,210,3

except bank overdrafts repayable on demand, under Ind AS forms an integral part of the cash management process 
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(` in Million)

7. Property, plant and equipment

 

 2016
Description of Assets Land Buildings Plant and 

Equipment
Furniture 

and Fixtures 
tools and 

furnishings

CWIP Other 
Assets

Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1st Jan 2016 1,536.4 2,576.2 10,676.1 1,282.0 559.3 224.0 16,854.0
 Additions 53.0 20.0 1,181.5 307.6 245.4 332.9 2,140.4
 Acquisitions through business 

combinations
593.7 539.4 3,495.3 14.3 774.1 - 5,416.8

 Disposals (18.3) (0.1) (408.0) (23.6) - (19.3) (469.1)
(13.3) - - (8.4) - - (21.7)

 Others (64.8) 55.8 274.9 87.3 (612.2) (49.0) (308.0)
 Balance as at 31st December, 

2016
2,086.8 3,191.3 15,219.9 1,659.3 966.5 488.6 23,612.4

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1st Jan 2016 - (122.6) (867.5) (275.7) - - (1,265.8)
 Acquisitions through business 

combinations
- (83.9) (1,817.0) (81.1) - - (1,982.0)

 Depreciation expense for the year - (173.5) (1,458.8) (496.3) - (134.1) (2,262.7)
 Disposals - - 308.4 42.7 - 3.1 354.2

- - - - - - -
 Others - (6.4) 195.8 1.3 - - 190.7
 Balance as at 31st December, 

2016
- (386.5) (3,639.1) (809.1) - (130.9) (4,965.6)

III. Net carrying amount 2,086.7 2,804.9 11,580.8 850.2 966.4 357.7 18,646.8

 2015
Description of Assets Land Buildings Plant and 

Equipment
Furniture 

and Fixtures 
tools and 

furnishings

CWIP Other 
Assets

Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1st April, 2015 1,343.6 2,327.5 9,522.6 917.8 1,263.3 219.6 15,594.4
 Additions 102.4 211.7 1,145.9 211.3 - 10.5 1,681.8
 Acquisitions through business 

combinations
- - - - - - -

 Disposals - (0.6) (193.3) (16.2) - (8.8) (218.9)
 Others 90.4 37.6 200.9 169.1 (704.0) 2.7 (203.3)
 Balance as at 31st December, 

2015
1,536.4 2,576.2 10,676.1 1,282.0 559.3 224.0 16,854.0

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1st April, 2015 - - - - - - -
 Acquisitions through business 

combinations
- - - - - - -

 Depreciation expense for the year - (123.0) (1,162.4) (299.4) - - (1,584.8)
 Disposals - 0.4 126.5 16.6 - - 143.5
 Others - - 168.4 7.1 - - 175.5
 Balance as at 31st December, 

2015
- (122.6) (867.5) (275.7) - - (1,265.8)

III. Net carrying amount 1,536.4 2,453.6 9,808.6 1,006.3 559.3 224.0 15,588.2

 Both during the years 2016 and 2015 no impairment has been recognised to property, plant and equipment.
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8. Goodwill
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

Apr 2015
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 19,364.2 18,030.8 6,006.5
Additional amounts recognised from business combinations 
occurring during the year

9,359.1 133.3 13,577.8

(172.4) 1,200.1 (1,553.5)
Balance at end of year 28,550.9 19,364.2 18,030.8
Accumulated impairment losses
Balance at beginning of year (1,650.0) (1,650.0) -
Impairment losses recognised in the year   (1,650.0)
Balance at end of year (1,650.0) (1,650.0 ) (1,650.0)
Net carrying amount 26,900.9 17,714.2 16,380.8

 Impairment testing of goodwill

Cash Generating Units 31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
Apr 2015

Germany 7,432.1 7,500.3 7,020.2
Italy 2,120.3 2,154.9 1,911.3
Spain 6,931.9 6,995.4 6,547.7
India 9,761.9 402.9 281.1
Others 654.7 660.7 620.5
Total 26,900.9 17,714.2 16,380.8

Cash Generating Units 31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
Apr 2015

Germany 7,432.1 7,500.3 7,020.2
Italy 3,770.3 3,804.9 3,561.3
Spain 6,931.9 6,995.4 6,547.7
India 9,761.9 402.9 281.1
Others 654.7 660.7 620..5
Total 28,550.9 19,364.2 18,030.8

 a) Key assumptions used in the calculation of value in use at 31st December, 2016

2016
Discount Rate (Range across CGU’s) 5.34%-12.85%

characteristics.
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(` in Million)

% of revenue
2016

Margins (Range across CGU’s) 4% - 23%

for each year.

 b) Results of the analysis

  `

9. Intangible assets
 
 2016

Description of Assets Development 
Expenditure

Computer 
Software

Patents and 
Trademarks

Others Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1st January, 2016 4.1 162.1 - 38.8 205.0
 Additions - 8.5 - 8.7 17.2
 Additions from internal developments - - - - -
 Acquisitions through business 

combinations
- 47.9 - - 47.9

 Disposals - (0.8) - - (0.8)
- - - - -

 Others - 2.1 - (3.3) (1.2)
 Balance as at 31st December, 2016 4.1 219.8 - 44.2 268.1

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1st January, 2016 (1.7) (17.2) - - (18.9)
 Acquisitions through business 

combinations
- (34.5) - - (34.5)

 Amortisation expense for the year (1.3) (61.5) - - (62.8)
 Eliminated on disposal of assets - 0.4 - - 0.4

- - - - -
 Other adjustments - 1.9 - - 1.9
 Balance as at 31st December, 2016 (3.0) (110.9) - - (113.9)
III. Net carrying amount 1.1 108.9 - 44.2 154.2
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 2015

Description of Assets Development 
Expenditure

Computer 
Software

Patents and 
Trademarks

Others Total

Intangible Assets

I. Cost

 Balance as at 1st April, 2015 12.2 98.2 - - 110.4

 Additions - 51.3 - 25.0 76.3

 Disposals - (0.2) - - (0.2)

 Others (8.1) 12.8 - 13.8 18.5

 Balance as at 31st December, 2015 4.1 162.1 - 38.8 205.0

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment

 Balance as at 1st April, 2015 - - - - -

 Amortisation expense for the year (1.7) (50.2) - - (51.9)

 Eliminated on disposal of assets - 0.2 - - 0.2

 Other adjustments - 32.8 - - 32.8

 Balance as at 31st December, 2015 (1.7) (17.2) - - (18.9)

III. Net carrying amount 2.4 145.0 0.0 38.8 186.2
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(` in Million)

11. Trade and other receivables 
As at 31st December, 2016 As at 31st December, 2015 As at 1st April, 2015

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Trade receivables
(a) Secured, considered good - - - - - -
(b) Unsecured, considered good 5,219.2 - 3,830.8 - 3,895.6 -
(c) Doubtful

385.2 - 321.3 - 427.0 -
(385.2) - (321.3) - (427.0) -
5,219.2 - 3,830.8 - 3,895.6 -

- Related Parties 995.7 - 1,006.3 - 667.8 -
- Others 4,223.5 - 2,824.5 - 3,227.8 -

5,219.2 - 3,830.8 - 3,895.6 -

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

89.0 115.7
151.0 101.2

More than 12 months 179.2 185.0
419.2 401.9

(Provisions) (385.2) (321.3)

31st  
December, 2016

Opening Balance 321.3
Additions 33.3
Recoveries (47.8)
Transfers 92.4

(8.0)
Other (6.0)
Closing Balance 385.2

12. Loans
As at 31st December, 2016 As at 31st December, 2015 As at 1st April, 2015

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
a) Loans to related parties
 - Secured, considered good - - - - - -
 - Unsecured, considered good 12.3 2,426.4 28.5 826.2 8.3 -
 - Doubtful - - - - - -

- - - - - -
12.3 2,426.4 28.5 826.2 8.3 -

13. Other Assets
As at 31st December, 2016 As at 31st December, 2015 As at 1st April, 2015

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
(a) Capital advances - 44.3 - 77.1 - 54.6
(b) Other Assets
 (i) Security Deposits - 353.5 - 312.8 - 308.2
 (ii) Prepaid Expenses 148.2 577.4 116.5 538.7 114.4 465.9

government authorities
871.1 288.5 319.8 646.9 257.8 638.5

 (iv) Advances to suppliers 166.1 - 54.0 - 141.3 -
 (v) Incentive receivable 

(Grants)
189.7 - 189.2 - 90.2 -

 (vi) Other advances 194.8 61.0 615.8 488.6 224.0 629.3
1,569.9 1,324.7 1,295.3 2,064.1 827.7 2,096.5
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14. Inventories

As at 31st 
December, 2016

As at 31st 
December, 2015

As at 
1st April, 2015

(a) 1,147.4 627.0 733.5
(b) Work-in-progress 2,898.5 2,547.0 3,103.7
(c) 2,203.1 1,927.2 1,453.1
(d) Stores and spares 1,046.7 1,006.5 660.4
(e) Loose Tools 1,056.0 1,080.9 898.9
Total Inventories 8,351.7 7,188.7 6,849.6

(i) 30.9 22.7 25.6
(ii) 30.8 62.0 68.8
Total goods-in-transit 61.7 84.7 94.4

At 1st April, 2015 614.4
Additions 13.6

-
At 31st December, 2015 628.0
Change in Consolidation scope 69.1
Additions 63.4

-303.6
At 31st December, 2016 456.9

15. Cash and cash equivalent

 Cash and other cash equivalents as at 31st December, 2016 and 31st

Particulars As at 31st 
December, 2016

As at 31st 
December, 2015

As at
1st April, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents
(a) 941.0 369.5 703.6
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand 2.5 3.6 6.3
(c) Cash on hand 0.9 1.2 1.0
Total Cash and cash equivalent 944.4 374.3 710.9
Other Bank Balances
(a) 5.9 - -
(b)

30.8 127.2 181.9
Total Other Bank balances 36.7 127.2 181.9
Total cash, cash equivalents and bank balances 981.1 501.5 892.8

 Short-term bank deposits relate to investments of cash surpluses maturing in less than three months or available immediately.
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16. Equity Share capital 
31st December, 16 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
No. of 
shares

Amount No. of 
shares

Amount No. of 
shares

Amount

Equity shares of ̀ 486,942,621 4,869.4 395,000,000 3,950.0 395,000,000 3,950.0

shares of `
5 0.0 29,658,916 919.4 29,658,916 919.4

Equity shares of ̀ 378,088,265 3,780.9 323,336,993 3,233.4 322,977,207 3,229.8

Equity shares of ̀ 378,088,265 3,780.9 323,336,048 3,233.4 322,976,262 3,229.8

 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Employees’ 
Stock 

Options

Other 
Changes 

(give details)

Closing 
Balance

st December, 2016 No. of Shares 323,336,048 54,491,563 260,654 - 378,088,265
Amount 3,233.4 544 .9 2.7 - 3,780 .9

Period Ended 31st December, 
2015

No. of Shares 322,976,262 - 359,786 - 323,336,048

Amount 3,229.8 - 3.6 - 3,233.4
Period Ended 1st April, 2015 No. of Shares 92,340,466 - 1,305,277 229,330,519 322,976,262

Amount 923.4 - 13 .1 2,293.3 3,229.8

 Details of shares held by the holding Group, the ultimate holding Group, their subsidiaries and associates

As at 31st December, 2016
Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2), the holding Group 194,267,537
As at 31st December, 2015
Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2), the holding Group 171,767,537
As at 1st April, 2015
Parricipaciones Internacionales Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2), the holding Group 171,767,537

shareholder
31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that class 

of shares

Number of 
shares held that class of 

shares

Number of 
shares held that class of 

shares

Parricipaciones Internacionales 
Autometal, Dos S.L. (PIA2)

194,267,537 51.38% 171,767,537 171,767,537

Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd. (M&M) - - - - 65,271,407
65,271,407 17.26% 65,271,407 - -

 Note
 

company)

th December, 2015.



170

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

17. Reserves & surplus, Other reserves 

 (i) Securities premium reserve
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

April, 2015
Opening balance 4,986.8 4,949.8 4,949.8
Addition on Exercise of options 22.8 37.0 -
Other (preferential allotment) 10,069.6 - -
Closing balance 15,079.2 4,986.8 4,949.8

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Opening balance 13.9 27.9 27.9
Deferred employee expenses (95.7) 0.2 -
Granted to employees 166.9 - -

-
- (1.4) -

Options exercised during the year (11.6) (12.8) -
Closing Balance 73.6 13.9 27.9

 (iii) Retained earnings
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

April, 2015
Opening Balance (2,381.5) (3,185.0) (3,112.5)

1,690.1 767.2 -
Ind AS adjustments (refer note 6) - - (63.6)
Any other changes 390.9 36.3 (8.9)
Closing balance (300.5) (2,381.5) (3,185.0)

 (iv) Capital and other reserves
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

April, 2015
Capital Reserve 7,577.6 7,577.6 7,577.6
Other Reserve (Capital Redemption Reserve) 164.6 164.6 164.6

 (v) General Reserve
31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

April, 2015
Opening Balance 6,028.0 6,028.0 6,535.8

Reserve
- - (507.8)

Closing Balance 6,028.0 6,028.0 6,028.0

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Opening Balance 343.1 - (507.8)
Other Comprehensive Income (119.7) 343.1 -
Transferred to General Reserve - - 507.8
Closing Balance 223.4 343.1 -

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Opening Balance 100.0 - -
Other Comprehensive Income (64.2) 100.0 -
Closing Balance 35.8 100.0 -
Grand total 28,881.7 16,832.5 15,562.9
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 Nature and purpose of Reserves

 Securities premium reserve

 

under the MCIE Stock Options Scheme.

 Capital reserve

 Capital reserve is reserves generated out of merger under the Integrated Scheme of Amalgamation and the Composite Scheme 
of Amalgamation (Sections 391-395 of the Companies Act, 1956) for the merger of Mahindra Ugine Steel Group Limited 
(MUSCO), Mahindra Hinoday Industries Limited (MHIL), Mahindra Gears International Limited (MGIL), Mahindra Investment 
India Private Limited (MIIPL), Participaciones Internacionales Autometal Tres S.L. (PIA3) and Mahindra Composites Limited 

nature and is not available for distribution as dividend.

 General reserve

 General reserve of ` 5,767.1 Million is revenue reserve created by virtue of merger of Mahindra Stokes Holding Company 

dated 27th December, 2007 is reserve available for distribution as dividend.

 Capital redemption reserve

created to redeem preference shares issued by MUSCO before merger. These shares have since been redeemed and this 
reserve is available for distribution.

 Other reserves – Foreign currency translation reserve

 Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognized in other comprehensive income and 

is disposed off.

 

this reserve account.

18. Borrowings
Rate of Interest Maturity 31st  

December, 2016
31st  

December, 2015
1st  

April, 2015
Non- current borrowings
Measured at amortised cost

A.

(a) Term loans

1. Annual Upto 2029; 3,580.8 2,190.6 5,460.3

3,580.8 2,190.6 5,460.3

B.
amortised Cost

(a) Term Loans

- - 2,075.0

(b) Loans from related parties Bullet; 2020 5,744.1 5,327.6 6,191.0

5,744.1 5,327.6 8,266.0

9,324.9 7,518.2 13,726.3
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Rate of Interest Maturity 31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Current Borrowings
A.
(a) Loans repayable on 

demand
(1) 2,903.3 1,795.7 947.7

2,903.3 1,795.7 947.7
B.
(b) Loans from related parties 810.4 786.8 6.1
(c) Other Loans 582.1 525.8 308.8

1,392.5 1,312.6 314.9
4,295.8 3,108.3 1,262.6

Total non-current current 13,620.7 10,626.5 14,988.6

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

309.3 1,531.2 5,929.0
2,950.2 622.8 1,606.3

More than 5 years 6,065.4 5,364.2 6,191.0
9,324.9 7,518.2 13,726.3

19. Trade and other payables
31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Trade payable - Micro and small 
enterprises

11.7 - 103.7 - 12.6 -

Trade payable - Other than micro 
and small enterprises

15,181.0 - 13,667.1 - 10,205.8 -

Acceptances 67.1 - 220.4 - 237.3 -
15,259.8 - 13,991.2 - 10,455.7 -

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

Non-Current
(a) 15.5 - -

15.5 - -
Current
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt 296.1 220.1 237.5
(b) 337.7 292.3 17.1

633.9 512.4 254.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

21. Provisions 

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

(a)
Long-term Employee 71.2 2,325.4 383.3 2,287.1 168.7 2,245.7

(b) Other Provisions
(1) Warranty 17.7 - 79.0 - 75.6 -
(2) Other Provisions 104.6 302.4 7.9 262.3  116.8

Total Provisions 193.5 2,627.8 470.2 2,549.4 244.3 2,362.5

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

Provision for Gratuity 42.1 55.6 35.0 39.3 44.1 29.2
Provision for pension fund- non funded - 1,883.0 - 1,889.2 - 1,868.6
Provision for employee termination 
indemnities

- 213.4 - 201.2 - 209.1

Provision for compensated absences 25.2 162.5 27.3 146.4 20.6 122.0
Provision for Redundancy - - 311.5 - 93.3 -
Provision for voluntary retirement 
scheme

3.9 10.9 9.6 11.0 10.7 16.8

Total 71.2 2,325.4 383.4 2,287.1 168.7 2,245.7

 Details of movement in other provisions - non-current
Other 

Provisions
Balance at 1st April, 2015 116.8
Exchange difference -

145.5
Balance at 31st December, 2015 262.3
Change in consolidation scope 40.1

-
Balance at 31st December, 2016 302.4

 Other provisions of `
` 587.3 Million 

including penal charge of ` 101.9 Million and late fee charge of ` 223.1 Million. Presently the matter is being legally pursued. 
The group has provided ` 

 Details of movement in other provisions current
Warranty 

claims
Other 

Provisions
Total

Balance at 1st April, 2015 75.6 - 75.6
Exchange difference 5.2 - 5.2

(1.8) 7.9 6.1
Balance at 31st December, 2015 79.0 7.9 86.9
Change in consolidation scope

(61.3) 96.7 35.4
Balance at 31st December, 2016 17.7 104.6 122.3
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22. Deferred taxes 

Deferred tax assets -Tax credits Tax losses Tax credits 
R&D, training

Others Total

Balance as on 1st April, 2015 242.7 419.8 531.1 1,193.6
255.4 (45.6) - 209.8

Transfers 562.0 - (562.0) -
(-) Non-continued operations - - - -
Tax effect of discontinued operations - - - -
Differences on exchange 24.1 1.0 31.8 56.2
Balance as on 31st December, 2015 1,084.2 375.2 (0.3) 1,459.4

44.7 (172.2) - (127.5)
- - - -
- 110.0 - 110.0

Transfers - - - -
Other movements - - 133.4 133.4
Conversion differences (15.4) 0.3 (0.8) (15.9)
Balance as on 31st December, 2016 1,113.5 313.2 132.2 1,559.3

Deferred tax assets – Others Non deductible 
provisions

Others Total

Balance as on 1st April, 2015 108.1 533.2 641.3
(283.7) (99.2) (382.9)

Transfers 706.3 (461.1) 245.2
Differences on exchange 7.6 49.6 57.2
Balance as on 31st December, 2015 538.3 22.4 560.7

(22.3) (53.1) (75.4)
- 353.0 353.0

12.1 - 12.1
Conversion differences (5.2) (1.0) (6.2)
Balance as on 31st December, 2016 522.9 321.3 844.2

Deferred tax liabilities Unrestricted 
amortization

Grants Others Total

Balance as on 1st April, 2015 53.1 14.5 267.7 335.3
- (24.1) 24.4 0.3

Transfers 103.6 2.3 139.3 245.2
Differences on exchange 3.6 2.2 4.9 10.7
Balance as on 31st December, 15 160.3 (5.1) 436.3 591.5

(13.0) (17.8) 8.4 (22.4)
- 18.3 - 18.3

381.4 - - 381.4
Transfers - 19.0 - 19.0
Conversion differences (0.1) (18.3) (1.3) (19.7)
Balance as on 31st December, 2016 528.5 (3.9) 443.4 968.0
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(` in Million)

Particulars As at
31st December, 2016

Unused Tax losses (revenue in nature) 1,306.5
1,306.5

st

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015
Tax losses Others Tax losses Others

Germany 849.9 - 834.7 -
Spain 112.7 313.2 113.6 374.9
Italy 150.9 - 135.8 -
India - 132.2 - -

1,113.5 445.4 1,084.2 374.9

23. Corporate income tax expense

Year ended  
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

In respect of current year 745.1 327.1

In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary 
differences 180.4 (88.2)
Total income tax expense on continuing operations 925.5 238.9

 (ii) Income tax recognised on Other comprehensive income

Year ended  
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

34.6 (79.8)
34.6 (79.8)

Year ended
31st December, 2016

2,615.6
905.2

Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (134.5)
Reduction in tax rate
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (79.3)

49.0
(41.1)
310.1

deferred tax assets (83.9)
925.5
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(` in Million)

24. Other liabilities

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015 1st April, 2015
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

a. Advances received from 
customers

120.3 - 15.4 - 21.1 -

b. Government grant - 348.1 - 419.1 - 301.1
c. Taxes payable (other than 

income taxes)
494.6 - 469.6 - - -

d. Employee Related 1,046.2 - 786.6 - 831.1 -
e. Deferred Payment Liabilities & 

others
121.5 320.8 983.3 404.7 6.9 527.2

1,782.6 668.9 2,254.9 823.8 859.1 828.3

Year ended
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a) Interest Income
36.1 31.3

(b) Dividend Income
71.7 17.9

(c) 63.2 18.0

(d) - 16.3
(e) Miscellaneous income 142.6 203.9

313.6 287.4

26. Cost of materials

 Cost of material consumed

Year ended
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

Opening stock 627.0 733.5
22,047.8 17,668.5
23,674.8 19,402.0
(1,147.4) (627.0)

Cost of materials consumed 21,527.4 17,775.0

Year ended
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a) 9,124.1 6,574.2
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 143.9 90.9
(c) Equity-settled share-based payments 59.9 (0.3)
(d) 1,697.0 1,348.5

11,024.9 8,013.3
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(` in Million)

28. Finance costs 
Year ended

31st December, 2016
9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a) Interest expense 423.3 361.5

(b) 170.2 142.6

593.5 504.1

29. Other expenses
Year ended

31st December, 2016
9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

(a) Tools & Stores consumed 2,678.3 1,893.7

(b) 2,917.7 2,163.5

(c) Repairs and maintenance 1,804.1 1,185.0

(d) Subcontracting, Hire and Service Charges 4,523.4 2,680.2

(e) Excise duty on sale of products 2,047.3 1,354.0

(f) Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR) under section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.4 4.1

(g) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses

(i) As Auditors 32.3 17.7

(ii) 3.6 1.7

(iii) 14.1 8.3

(h) Other Expenses 3,442.5 1,789.1

17,466.7 11,097.3

` 143.9 Million (` 90.9 Million) has been recognised in the 

  (i) Gratuity

The Group makes annual contribution to the Group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation 

Deferred payments are fair valued through P&L.
  (iii) Compensated absences

discount rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on government bonds 
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(` in Million)

 (c) Risks

an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.

Funded Plan Unfunded Plans
Gratuity VRS Pension

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of 

Service Cost

Current Service Cost 18.6 18.0 - - 17.7 26.6

- 0.5 - - - -

Net interest expense 4.7 - 1.3 1.4 23.0 29.1

23.3 18.5 1.3 1.4 40.7 55.7

Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net 
interest expense)

- (12.9) - - - -

assumptions
31.8 13.4 0.1 (0.1) 68.2 (191.3)

Actuarial gains and loss arising from experience adjustments (2.1) - - - - -

Actuarial gains and loss arising from Demographic adjustments 0.7 - - - - -

comprehensive income 30.4 0.5 0.1 (0.1) 68.2 (191.3)

Total 53.6 19.0 1.4 1.3 108.9 (136.3)

at 31st December,

31st December
334.7 305.4 14.8 20.6 1,883.0 1,889.3

st December 240.4 234.0 - - - -

(97.6) (71.4) (14.8) (20.6) (1,883.0) (1,889.3)

 4. Current portion of the above 42.1 35.0 3.9 9.6 - -

 5. Non-current portion of the above 55.6 36.4 10.9 11 1,883.0 1,889.3

II. Change in the obligation during the year ended  
31st December

beginning of the year
304.5 264.5 20.6 27.5 1,889.3 1,994.2

Business
6.7 - - - - -
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Funded Plan Unfunded Plans
Gratuity VRS Pension

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

  - Current Service Cost 18.6 18.9 - - 17.7 26.6

  - Interest Expense (Income) 21.9 14.9 1.3 1.4 23.0 29.1

 4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

  i. Demographic Assumptions 0.3 - - - - -

24.9 13.3 0.1 (0.1) 68.2 (191.3)

  iii. Experience Adjustments (2.1)
(40.1) (6.1) (7.2) (8.2) (115.2) (103.2)

 6. Others (Specify) - - - - - 134.2

end of the year
334.7 305.5 14.8 20.6 1,883.0 1,888.9

III. Change in fair value of assets during the year ended 
31st December

year
242.6 191.1 - - - -

Business Transfer
- - - - - -

  - Expected return on plan assets 17.2 12.9 - - - -

 4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(6.9) - - - - -

  - Demographic assumptions (0.4) (0.1) - - - -

payments recoverable)
28.0 36.3 - - - -

(40.1) (6.1) - - - -

240.4 234.1 - - - -

 1. Discount rate 8.00% 8.00% 1.45%
 2. Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.75% to 

9.00%
6.75% to 

9.00%
- -

 3. Attrition rate 2% to 
11%

2% to 
11%

- -

 4. Salary Escalation 7.0% to 
8.5%

7.0% to 
8.5%

1.75% to 
2.30%
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Other Information

India Germany

Life Expectancy of a person retiring at the year end

Men 12-15 years 13-19 years

Women 12-15 years 19-23 years

Life Expectancy of a person retiring 20 years after the year end

Men 12-15 years 38-86 years

Women 12-15 years 43-96 years

India Germany

Variation in 
Hypothesis

Increase in 
Hypothesis

Decrease in 
Hypothesis

Variation in 
Hypothesis

Increase in 
Hypothesis

Decrease in 
Hypothesis

Interest Rate

Year ended
31st December, 2016

9 month period ended 
31st December, 2015

Balance at the beginning of the year 201.2 209.2

4.0 3.4

Provided during the year 13.4 10.6

(2.9) (20.6)

Exchange differences (2.3) (1.4)

Balance at the end of the year 213.4 201.2

31. Business combinations

 
Private Limited. And the purchase price has amounted to `

Cash 6,913.3

Issue of Shares 6,114.6 13,027.9

(3,668.8)

9,359.1

to be generated by its acquisition by the Group.
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Fair value of the net 
assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 3,448.1

Other non-current assets 38.6

Deferred tax assets 12.1

Inventories 1,176,.8

Accounts receivable 1,281.7

Other current assets 146.9

48.9

Cash and cash equivalents 192.2

Assets acquired 6,345.3

1,356.2

Provisions 44.5

Deferred taxes 381.4

Accounts payable 722.9

Other liabilities 171.5

Liabilities assumed 2,676.5

Total net assets acquired 3,668.8

build prices and considering the various assets’ residual useful lives.

Cash paid 6,913.3
Cash and cash equivalents at the entity acquired (192.2)

6,721.1

32. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

1st  
April, 2015

preferred an appeal
74.6 77.0 73.8

278.5 157.4 157.4

 iii. Excise cases against the Group, appealed at 
CESTAT

94.5 88.5 96.8

 iv. Excise cases against the Group, appealed at 
High Court

48.8 48.8 48.8

 v. Service Tax 66.6 67.4 56.4

217.9 163.8 157.9

 vii. Stamp Duty, Government Cess and others 74.9 91.3 102.6

 viii. Water Charges 325.0 325.0 507.4
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 ix. The Group had imported capital goods under the 
Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG), of the 
Government of India, at concessional rate of duty 

against future obligation

30.7 30.7 79.9

- 4.2 4.2

(c) Guarantees

 i. Guarantees issued by banks on Group’s behalf 106.4 106.4 91.8

(d) Commitment

 i. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 
exhausted on capital account (net of advances) 
and not provided for tangible assets

176.0 174.6 187.8

` 587.3 Million 
including penal charge of ` 101.9 Million and late fee charge of ` 223.1 Million. Presently the matter is pending before the 

nd July, 2012, 

has deposited an amount of `
` 101.9 Million claimed by 

 
`

Court and that the State of Maharashtra (Irrigation Department) shall not adopt any coercive steps for recovery of the aforesaid 
penal rate charges of ` 101.9 Million and the late fee of ` 223.1 Million.

33. Related Party Transactions
 (a) Names of Related Parties
  Ultimate Holding Group – CIE Automotive S.A.
  Holding Group – Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, DOS S.L

  No. Name of the Group
  1 CIE Berriz, S.L.

  3 CIE Mecauto, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal
  4 CIE Compiégne, S.A.S.
  5 Praga Louny
  6 Componentes de Automoción Recytec, S.L.U
  7 Componentes de Dirección Recylan S.L.U.
  8 Nova Recyd, S.A.U.
  9 CIE Metal CZ, s.r.o.

  11 CIE Automotive Parts Co. Ltd.
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(` in Million)

  13 Matic Dolares

  15 Global Near S.L.

st December, 2015).

is an Associate).

   Subsidiary Companies of MVML
   1 Mahindra Intertrade Limited
   2 Mahindra Steel Service Centre Limited
   3 Mahindra Auto Steel Limited

   5 Mahindra Heavy Engines Private Limited

   Fellow Subsidiary Companies of MVML
   1 Mahindra Trucks & Buses Private Limited
   2 Mahindra Gujarat Tractor Limited
   3 Mahindra Aerospace Structures Private Limited
   4 Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private Limited
   5 NBS International Limited
   6 Mahindra Sanyo Special Steels Private Limited
   7 Mahindra Consulting Engineers Limited
   8 Defence Land Systems Limited
   9 Mahindra Naval Defence Systems Limited
   10 Mahindra Contech Limited

 (d) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Hemant Luthra Chairman & Executive Director
2 th July, 2016)
3 Managing Director
4 Mr. Pedro Echergaray (till 12th September, 2016 ) Executive Director
5 Mr. Sanjay Joglekar( till 30th September, 2016)
6 Mr. Romesh Kaul Chief Executive - Stampings & 

Composites 
7 th October, 2016)
8 Mr. Krishnan Shankar (Pursuant to Sec 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013) Company Secretary & Head-Legal
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

34. Leasing Disclosures

 

Cancellable minimum lease commitments.
For the year ended 

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015
Operating Lease
not later than one year 213.0 239.8

521.3 682.1
1,120.7 1,061.8
1,855.0 1,983.7

35. Earnings per share

 a) Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 
31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015

` Per Share ` Per Share
Basic earnings per share

5.01 2.37
Diluted Earnings per share

4.99 2.37

  (i) Basic earning per share
For the year ended 

31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015
1,690.1 767.2

Weighted average number of equity shares 337,156,525 323,209,285
Earnings per share from continuing operations – Basic 5.01 2.37

  (ii) Diluted earning per Share

options and Convertible bonds for the respective periods. Since, the effect of the conversion of Preference shares 

For the year ended 
31st December, 2016 31st December, 2015

1,690.1 767.2
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the 
calculation of Basic EPS

337,156,525 323,209,285

Others if any 1,430,039 275,190
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the 
calculation of Diluted EPS

338,586,564 323,484,475

Diluted EPS 4.99 2.37
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(` in Million)

36. Other information

31st  
December, 2016

31st  
December, 2015

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on 3.1 103.7

(ii) Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on 0.2 0.4

the MSME suppliers beyond the appointed day
0.4 2.6

interest under MSME Development Act)
0.5 0.5

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on 1.0 0.6

37. Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

Number of tranches of share based payments

Particulars Number of 
Shares

Expiry Date Exercise Price Fair value at 
Grant Date

Equity Settled

1 Granted on 22nd 1241280 22nd 150 106.16

2 Granted on 12th Dec 2016 350000 12th Dec 2019 150 100.36

38. Exceptional Costs

 
Scheme declared in June 2016.

As per Report of even date Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
B. K. Khare & Co. Hemant Luthra Ander Arenaza Álvarez

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director
K. Ramaswami Daljit Mirchandani
Managing Director Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner
Membership No. 044784

Dhananjay Mungale Neelam Deo
Director Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar
Company Secretary & Head-Legal

Mumbai, 23rd Mumbai, 23rd
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